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CONVENING ORDER



WNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
18T MARINE LOGISTICS GROUP, FMF
BOX 555606
CAMMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA 32055-5606

5800
GCMCeO #1b-2 1

AUG 05 2022

Gemeral Cosurt-Martdal Convening Order #la-21, dated 2 Rugrust
202 2, is modified as fol lows specifically for United States v. First
Lie utenamt Christopher F'. Patterson, United States Marine Corps=s only:

DELETE

Maj or United States Marine Corps;
Cap tain United States Marine Corps:;
Cap tain Urnited States Marine Corps.

W
5
@)

ADD

Maj or Uinited St—ates Marine Corps;
Cap tain United States Marine Corps; and
Cap tain Uni ted States Marine Corps.

MEMBERS

Commande x Uni
Lie utenamt Colomel
Lie utenamt Colomel
Lie utenamt Colomel
Maj or
Maj or

ted States Navy;

United States Marine Corps ;
d States Marine Corps;
United States Marine Corp-s;
United States Marine Corps; '
United States Marine Corps;

Lie United States Navy;
Maj or United States Marine Corps;

Maj or Unit-ed States Marine Corps;
Maj or United States Marine Corps;
Maj oxr United States Marine Corps;
Maj Wnited Sttates Marine Corps;

Mad United States Marine Corps;

Cap United States Marine Corps:
Cap United States Marine 'Corps; and
Cap=tain United States Marine Corps.

P. N. FRIETZE
Brigadier General
U.S. Marine Corps
Commanding General




CHARGE SHEET



CHARGE SHEET
I. PERSONAL DATA

1. NAME OF ACCCUSED (Last, First, M) 2. EDIPI 3. RANK/ERATE 4. PAY GR#DE
PATTERSON, Christopher, . I 1Lt 0-2
5. UNIT OR OREGANIZATION 6. CURREENT SERVICE
a. INITIAL_ DATE b. TERM
CLR 17, 1st MLG 3Jun1? | Indefinite
7. PAY PER MONTH 8. NATURE OF RESTRAINT OF ACCUSED 9. DATE(SS) | D
a. BASIC b. SEA/FOREIGN DUTY c. TOTAL F’Q{-T[‘j‘m RES-T.Q:[(j:rC o | 11?‘.« 207 ,--‘_'2( mc 2.(\‘\1@
N N/A
$5,432.70 NONE $5.432.70

Il. CHARGE AND SPECIFICATIONS
10. Chaurge: Violation of thee UCMJ, Article 120¢

Specification 1 (/ndecent Record®ing): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.=. Marine Corps, while
on active deaty, did, at or near Oc=eanside, California, on or about 7 January ithout legal justification or
lawful auth-orization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Mrwithout his consent and uneder
circumstanezes in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Specification 2 (Indecent Recora®ing): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.=S. Marine Corps, while
on active deaty, did, at or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 10 January 2020,

without leg al justification or law ful authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Sergeant
‘U.‘.S. Marine Corps, witlhout his consent and under circumstances in which he had =a reasonable
expectatione of privacy.

Specification 3 (Indecent Recorading): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.=S. Marine Corps, while
on active dwaty, did, at or near Oc=eanside, California, on divers occasions, between on or ab=out 17 January 2020
and on or a'bout 28 January 2020%, without legal justification or lawful authorization, knowimgly make a recordi ng
of the privaate area of First Lieutenant U.S. Marine Corps, without his consent and uender circumstances in
which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Specification 4 (Indecent Recordading): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.=S. Marine Corps, while
on active dwaty, did, at or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 24 January 2020,
without leial iustiﬁcation or law—ful authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Sergeant

Major| U.S. Marine Corp s, without his consent and under circumstances in which h=e had a reasonable
expectatiorm of privacy.

[SEE SUPPLEMENTAL PAGE]
- lll. PREFERRAL ]
11a. NAME OF ACCUSER (Last, First, Mi) b. GRADE c. ORGANIZATION OF ACCUSE=R
- E-7 HqSptBn, MCI-W, MCB, CamPen, CA
e. DATE
13 January 2022
AF . Before me, the undersiggned, authorized by law to administer oaths in cases of this charactesr, personally appearecd the

above named accuser this 13th day of January, 2022, and signed the foregoing charge and specifications urnder oath that he is a pemrson
subject to thes Uniform Code of Militarsy Justice and that he either has personal knowledge of or has invesiitigated the matters set #orth
therein and tFnat the same are true to t'he best of his knowledge and belief.

K. D. CARTIER HgSptBn, MCI-W, MCB, CamPen, CA

Typed Name of OffSicer Organization of Officcer

Captain, U.S. Marime Corps

Judge Advoca.te

Official Capacity to Administer Oaths
(See R.C.M. 307(b)--must be comrissioned officer)

ignature

DD FORM 458 S/N 0102-LF-000-4580=

ORIGINAL



12. On _{E‘ﬂ._ \9 .20 2D, . the accused was informed of the charges against him and of the name of
the accuser known to me. (See R.C.M. 308(a)). (See R.C.M. 308 if notification cannot be made.)

CLR 17, 1st MLG

Typed Name of Immediate Commander Organization of Immediate Commander

Captain, U.S. Marine, Corps

OURT-MARTIAL CONVENING AUTHORITY

Designation of Command or

13. The sworn charges were received at 12350  hours, L&w% 20 22 at CLR 17, 1st MLG

Officer Exercising Summary Court-Martial Jurisdiction (See R.C.M. 403)

FORTHE' Commanding Officer

Legal Officer

Typed Name of Officer

Captain, U.S. Marine Corps

Official Capacity of Officer Signing

V. REFERRAL; SERVICE OF CHARGES B
14a. DESIGNATION OF COMMAND OF CONVENING AUTHORITY b. PLACE c. DATE

Pendlefin,
st Marine Logrstics Growg e o | MAY 10 202

Referred for trial to the G'CVKW( court-martial convened by G CMC (@) ‘# [ — 2 {

) ) ) 22081
| Dated / O /(/(am, 20 ’2! ,subject to the following instrum

7o be :‘Fm(,cf '.FAP C,MJ LA c<+10~«-~ it e
o 7&0\4’ o— T
o = 5///////////////////////f/////////f of

Command or Order

PAillip M Frietfze Comumnandirs GeneraX

Typed Name of Officer Official Capacity oﬂ)fﬁcer Signing

Q-+

15. On 7(1 /‘@{ - ,20 11_ , | (caused to be) served a copy hereof on (each of) the above named accused.

K.D.CARTE Captain, U.S. Marine Corps

Grade or Rank of Trial Counsel/Summary Court-Martial Officer

Signature

FOOTNOTES 1 -- When an appropriale commander signs personally, inapplicable words are stricken.
2 -- See R.C.M. 601(e) concerning instructions. If none, so state.

DD Form 458 Reverse
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DD Form 458, Charge She=et, Supplemental Page 1 of 1
Unite=d States v. First Lieute=nant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps

Speecification 5 (Ind-ecent Recording): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, did, -at or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on divers occasions, between on or
abeout 17 January 20820 and on or about 31 January 2020, without legal justification or lawful authoriz=tion
kn-owingly make a reecording of the private area of First LieutenanthUS. Marine Corgps, witho-ut his
comsent and under ¢ ircumstances in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Sprecification 6 (Indeccent Recording): In that First Licutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, did, =at or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 25 February 2020,
wi-thout legal justification or lawful authorization knowingly make a recording of the private area of S ergeant

.S. Marines Corps, without his consent and under circumstances in which he had a resasonable
exgoectation of priva-cy.

Sp-ecification 7 (Indeccent Recording): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, did, =t or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 25 February 2020,
wisthout legal justification or lawful authorization knowingly make a recording of the private area of Miajor

-S. Marines Corps, without his consent and under circumstances in which he had a recasonable
exgoectation of privascy.

AND NO OTHERS

ORIGINAL



CHARGE SHEET

l. PERSONAL DATA

1. NAME OF ACCUSED (Last, First, M) 2. EDIPI 3. RANIKIRATE 4 PAY GRADE
PATTERISON, Christopher, F. _ IstLt 0O=-2
5. UNIT OR OORGANIZATION 6. CURRRENT SERVICE

a. INIT IAL DATE b. TERM
CLR 17, 1 st MLG 3 hun 17 Indes#finite

7. PAY PER PFONTH 8. NATURE OF RESTRAINT OF ACCUSED 9. DAT E(S) iMPﬁ

a. BASIC b. SEA/FOREIGN DUTY c. TOTAL O e A i s 1
PETRN RLSTRTCTION "EXC 2019 - 2( De(_ 209,

$5.,432.70 NONE $5,432.70 N N/A

Il. CHARGES AND SPECIFICATIONS

10. Adiditional Charg?: VioEation of the UCMJ, Article 120c

X
Specification 1 (Indecent RecordFng): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, 1J.S. Marine Corps, while
on active «luty, did, at or near Mamrine Corps Base Quantico, Virginia, between on or aboust 3 June 201 7,and on or
about 14 August 2017, without le_gal justification or lawful authorization, knowinili and wrongfully make a

recording of the private area of C;aptain-U.S. Marin s; Captain -S. Marine Corps: =irst
Lieutenant‘U.S. Marine Coisi F irsi Lieutenant U.S. Marine Corps; First Lieutenanta

U.S. Marime Corps; First Lieutenaant U.S. Marine Corps; and First Lieutenant .S. Marine
Corps, without their consent and winder circumstances in which they had a reasonable expeectation of privacy .

Specification 2 (Indecent Recordi ng): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, 1J.S. Marine Corps, ~while
on active cduty, did, at or near Ocesanside, California, on divers occasions, between on or about 9 January 2020,
and on or about 24 February 20208, without legal justification or lawful authorization, kno wingly make a

recording of the private area of M1 without his consent and under circumstances in which he had a
reasonable expectation of privacy .

Specificataon 3 (Indecent Recordi_ng): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, 1J.S. Marine Corps, ~while
on active cluty, did, at or near Mamrine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on divers oOccasions, between on or
about 24 February 2020, and on osr about 3 March 2020, without legal justification or law —ful authorization,
knowingly~ make a recording of thee private area of Hospital Corpsman Third Class .S. Navy, withoutt his
consent armd under circumstances =in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

[SEE SUPPLEMENTAL PAGE]

lll. PREFERRAL
1, First, MI) N b. GRADE c. ORGANIZATION OF ACCUSSER
E-7 HqSptBn, MCI-W, Me&CB, CamPen, CA

e. DATE

rL rb /4 Py /21

IT—Before me, the undersigneed, authorized by law to administer oaths in cases of this charac=ter, personally appear—ed the
above name=d accuser this 28th day of April, 2022, and signed the foregoing charge and specifications umnder oath that he is a goerson
subject to thee Uniform Code of Military —Justice and that he either has personal knowledge of or has invesstigated the matters st forth
therein and &£hat the same are true to the best of his knowledge and belief.

K. D. CARTER HgSptBn, MCI-W, MCBs, CamPen, CA

Typed Name of Officeer Organization of Ofaficer

Captain, U.S. Marine= Co Judge Advoc-ate

Official Capacity to Admiresister Oaths
(See R.C.M. 307(b)--must be cormmissioned officer)

DD FORM 458 S/N 0102-LF-000-45880

ORIGINAL




12.0n 29 K ‘m\ .20 L2 ., the accused was informed of the charges against him and of the name of
the accuser known to me. (See R.C.M. 308(a)). (See R.C.M. 308 if notification cannot be made.)

CLR 17, 1st MLG

Typed Name of Immediate Commander Organization of Immediate Commander

IV. RECEIPT BY COURT-MARTIAL CONVENING AUTHORITY

13. The sworn charges were receivedat 0% §A4 hours, 29 A‘P"_‘\__ 20 21 at CLR 17, 1st MLG

Designation of Command or

Officer Exercising Summary Court-Martial Jurisdiction (See R.C.M. 403)
FORTHE'"  Commanding Officer

Execwtwe,  <beeal Officer

Official Capacity of Officer Signing

Typed Name of Officer

wissor I S. Marine Corps

Grade

V. REFERRAL; SERVICE OF CHARGES

14a. DESIGNATION OF COMMAND OF CONVENING AUTHORITY b. PLACE ) c. DATE

Lot Marine Lepns Rer Grovge Camp Pendleton, CA MAY 10 2022
Referred for trial to the &M court-martial convened by _GCA/LC 0 + (— 2|

pated /O AN a,(g, 20 2|  .subject to the following instructions? 75 be e
y > S OV — o

I L ”:-CS"'T:;{ ,4(,4@4:?—%&7&’/\4—«—:3&4 ,WV‘C—A'/YWCi o~ |3
T&f_\_ 9 BQ/ T o

Command or Order

= o N/ o~ et—ze Cosvn s avicdira  (SeseraXl

Typed Name of Officer Official Capacity of @fficer Signing

O ~ , U.S. Marine Corps

15. On \L Mﬁ") .20 ’l L , | caused to be served a copy hereof on the above named accused.
7

K.D. CARTER Captain, U.S. Marine Corps

Grade or Rank of Trial Counsel

Signature

FOOTNOTES 1 -- When an appropriate commander signs personally, inapplicable words are stricken.
2 -- See R.C.M. 601(e) concerning instructions. If none, so state.

DD Form 458 Reverse

ORIGINAL




[OD Form 458, Addition=al Charge Sheet, Sugpoplemental Page 1 of 1
Inited States v. First Li eutenant Christophe=r IF. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps

Specification 4 (Fndecent RecordEreg): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, did, at or near Mamri ne Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 6 February 2020,
without legal justification or lawf-u 1authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Lieutenant
.S. Navy_ and Staff Serge=amt U.S. Marine Corps, without their consent and under circumstances in
which they had a reasonable expesc-tation of privacy.

Specification 5 (Fndecent RecordErmeg): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, diid, at or near Mamri me Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 13 July 2019, without
legal justificatiom or lawful autho=ri zation, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Captain-U.S. v I
Marine Corps, waithout his consermt and under circumstances in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Specification 6 (Fndecent RecordEneg): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, diud, at or near Mamrime Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 27 February 2020,
without legal justification or lawf=u 1 authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Gunnery
Sergeant LJ.S. Marine Corposs, without his consent and under circumstances in which he had a reasonable
expectation of pravacy.

Specification 7 (Fndecent RecordEmrg): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, diid, at or near Mamrine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 23 January 2019, .

without legal justification or lawf u 1 authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Captain
U.S. Marine Corpos, and Gunnery Sergean .S. Marine Corps, without their consent and under
circumstances in  which they had = reasonablg expectation of privacy.

Specification § (Fndecent RecordEmeg): In ta;&ieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, diid, at or near Mamrine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 23 January 2020

without legal justification or lawf™u1authorization, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Mr. i

without his consesnt and under cireceimstances in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Specification 9 (Fndecent RecordEmeg): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F. Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, while
on active duty, diLd, at or near Mamrine Corps Base Camp Pendleton, California, on or about 28 July 2019, without
legal justificationm or lawful authomri zation, knowingly make a recording of the private area of Mr. without
his consent and u-nder circumstanecess in which he had a reasonable expectation of privacy.

Additional Char—ge II: Violatiom ©f the UCMJ, Art 133
(8

Specification (Canduct Unbecomarag an Officer and a Gentlemg'n): In that First Lieutenant Christopher F.
Patterson, U.S. Marine Corps, whaille on active duty, did, at or near Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton,
California, on diwsers occasions, b-e#tween on or about 23 January 2019, and on or about 17 December 2020, set up
an activated recomrding device in as public restroom, which, under the circumstances, was unbecoming of an officer
and a gentlemgn.

~

£
AND NO OTHERS

ORIGINAL



TRIAL COURT MOTIONS & RESPONSES



WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS FIRST
LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F.
Plaintiff, PATTERSON’S MOTION IN LIMINE FOR
AN ORDER DETERMINING EVIDENCE
V. OF A CAMERA BE DEEMED
INADMISSABLE BASED UPON THE
CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON, LACK OF A VALID CHAIN OF CUSTODY
First Lieutenant, U.S. Marine Corps,
Date: 28 June 2022
Accused. Time: 0900
Location: Military Courthouse, MCB CP

1. Nature of the Motion: The accused, hereinafter “1¥Lt Patterson,” respectfully moves the Court

in limine to exclude from admission into evidence at trial an item variously referred to by NCIS
and government witnesses as a “recording device,” “video recording device,” “camera-pen,”
“pen-camera,” and simply a “camera,” on grounds a proper chain of custody for this item from it
initial discovery to its transfer to NCIS was neither maintained nor properly documented so as to
ensure its authenticity. For uniformity purposes, the item will be referred to below as a “camera.”

2. Statement of Facts: The operative facts relevant to this motion are fairly summarized in the an

NCIS Report of Investigation (‘ROI’), dated 10 February 2021, pages 1 through 4, attached

hereto as “Exhibit A.” This document was provided by the government to the defense in

discovery as pages 000135 through 000138.

On 17 December 2020, St U MC. 15t ntel Bo, 15t MIG, 19 MEF,

discovered a camera in the locker room of Building 210821. When interviewed by NCIS, SSat
-stated that on 17 December 2020, between 0815 and 0830, he walked into

the men's shower room in Building 210821 to shower after exercising. SSgt-stated that

when he placed his gym bag on the ground and began removing his shoes, he saw the camera on

the shower room floor, against the wall, under a wall mounted radiator. SSgt-picked up the

camera with his bare hand, pressed the end cap, and unscrewed the end cap to check for ink. SSgt

Appellate Exhibit ¥ cic

Lo A

Page ) of (o

o’




¢ C

-claims that when he removed the end cap, he saw a Secure Digital memory card, and
subsequently placed the camera inside his gym bag. According to SSgt-he left the men's
shower room after showering at approximately 0900 and walked outside Building 210821 for a
command formation in the parking lot. Once outside, SSgt-handed the camera to CWO?2

I s C. 15t intel BN, 1M1G, 1 MEF." ssgtffexpiained that cwo s
sitting in a vehicle with GySg /| lUsMC. 15t Intel BN, T MIG, 1 MEF, when he
handed the camera to CWOZ- The results of SSgt-teiephone interview with NCIS
1s attached as “Exhibit B.”

According to CWOZ-SSgt-wa]ked up to his car and did hand him the camera.
CWOZ-admits he handled the camera with his bare hands, but claims he did not
disassemble it. CWOZ-has stated that after receiving the camera he placed it inside his
vehicle’s driver-side door. He further claims the camera stayed inside his vehicle driver-side door
for a couple of hours while he drove to various locations on base in the performance of his job.
CWO2-claims he never left his vehicle while the device was in the driver-side door. CWO2

-has not explained how he performed his job for a couple of hours on base without leaving
his vehicle. CWOZ-has stated that between 1100 and 1300 on 17 December 2020, he
drove to Building 210722, and handed the camera off to SSgt- The results of CWO?2

-telephone interview with NCIS is attached as “Exhibit C.”

GySgt-JSMC, Ist Intel Bn, 1st MIG, 1st MEF, was interviewed by NCIS
and stated he was in CWQ2 -vehicle the morning of 17 December 2020 when SSgt-
gave CWOZ-the camera. GySgt-admjtted that he may have also handled the camera
briefly, but he was not sure. GySgt-stated he remembered CWO2-taking the device
to SSgt- The results of GySgt-telephone interview with NCIS is attached as
“Exhibit D.”

'CWO02 last name is spelled in various places in the ROI has having one ‘t” and at
other places as having two. It will be spelled with one t in this motion.
2

Appellate Exhibit _ X
Page 2 of @




C C

On 17 December 2020, SSgt-took possession of the camera from CWOZ-
somewhere between 1100 and 1300. SSgt-admitted handling the camera with his bare
hands and unscrewing the end cap, and placing the camera inside an unlocked mobile phone
locker in the stairwell between the first and second story of Building 210722. SSgifjjjjfurther

claimed that after the camera was in the locker for about an hour, he removed and inspected it
with gloved hands and it was also inspected by GySg_USMC, Ist Intel Bn, 1st

MIG, Ist MEF. According to SSgt-GySgt-was summoned to inspect the

camera because GySgt-was a “Technical Specialist” and had been ordered to inspect
the camera to determine if it could record, and store video and audio media. According to SSgt
-aﬂer GySgt-performed his analysis, the camera was placed in a manila envelope
and returned to the unlocked mobile phone locker. SSgt-admitted that the locker was
never locked while the camera was in the locker. The results of SSgt-teIephone interview
with NCIS is attached as “Exhibit E.”

When interviewed by NCIS, GySeJjjated that on 17 December 2020,
somewhere between 1100 to 1300, he met with SSgt-at the mobile phone locker in the
stairwell between the first and second floors of Building 210722, Marine Corps Base, Canip
Pendleton. GyS gt-admitted handling the camera with gloved hands by unscrewing the
end cap and visually inspecting the device for a camera, microphone, and memory storage. GySgt

-elated that after inspecting the device for approximately five minutes in the stairwell of
Building 210722, he informed SSgtjfffbe device appeared to have the capability to
electronically record and store video and audio media. The results of GySgt-
telephone interview with NCIS is attached as “Exhibit F.”

In the afternoon of 17 December 2020, NCIS was eventually notified by SSgt-
USMC, st Intel Bn, 1st MIG, 1* MEF, of the discovery of the camera. See, “Exhibit A.” Per
“Exhibit A,” paragraph 1, “NCIS subsequently conducted a cursory review of the contents of the

camera’s Secure Digital (SD) card.” There is no mention in “Exhibit A,” as to how, when, where,

Appellate Exhibit X
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or from whom, NCIS took possession of the camera. Likewise, there is no mention of the
particular NCIS Special Agent or employee who initially took possession of the camera. There is
no mention of the condition of the camera when NCIS took possession or whether or not it was in
a secure container at the time. To the best of the undersigned counsel’s knowledge, the
government has not yet provided the defense any chain of custody documentation whatsoever in
respect to the camera, Prima facially, “Exhibit A,” reveals several gaps in the narrative discussion
of the camera’s journey, most importantly with regard to its whereabouts subsequent to SSgt
-release of the camera and prior to NCIS’s receipt of the camera.
3. Discussion. Physical evidence is only admissible provided it is relevant and authentic.
According to M.R.E. 901(a), regarding authenticating evidence, “[t]o satisfy the requirement of
authenticating or identifying an item of evidence, the proponent must produce evidence sufficient
to support a finding that the item is what the proponent claims it is.” When an item of evidence
passes through the hands of multiple government employees, the proponent is required to
establish a reliable ‘chain of custody’ which proves the item of evidence is in the same condition
as when it left the possession of the accused.

In criminal law, the term “chain of custody” refers to the order in which items of evidence
have been handled during the investigation of a case. Proving that an item has been properly
handled through an unbroken chain of custody is required for it to be legally considered as
evidence in court. In criminal trials, the prosecution must typically prove that all evidence was
handled according to a properly documented and unbroken chain of custody. Crime-related items
found not to have followed a properly documented and unbroken chain of custody may not be
allowed as evidence in trials. In practice, a chain of custody is a chronological paper trail
documenting when, how, and by whom individual items of physical or electronic evidence—such
as digital cameras—were collected, handled, analyzed, or otherwise controlled during an
investigation. Under the law, an item will not be accepted as evidence during the trial and will not

be seen by the members unless the chain of custody is an unbroken and properly documented trail

Appellate Exhibit
Pagse A of _ ¢,
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without gaps or discrepancies. In order to convict an accused of a crime, the prosecution evidence
against the accused must have been handled in a meticulously careful manner to prevent
tampering or contamination.

In the instant case, it appears the camera was mishandled by multiple government
employees who passed it along without any documentation, lefl it in various unsecured places,
including personal bags, lockers, and vehicles, all while it was being disassembled, inspected and
examined by the same government employees, some of whom wore gloves, some of whom did
not. At least one individual admitted that he was not sure whether he handled the camera or not.
In the process, the camera was partially disassembled and re-assembled on multiple occasions by
different individuals. No documentation was prepared in regards to any of these events.

1t is respectfully submitted, that the government cannot establish a reliable chain of
custody for the camera sufficient to support its authenticity as a predicate to its admission into
evidence. The government cannot establish that the camera was in the same condition when it
was presented to NCIS as it was when it allegedly was in 1% Lt Patterson’s possession.

4. This Court Should Conduct An Evidentiary Hearing. It is respectfully requested that the

court convene an evidentiary hearing pursuant to M.R.E. 901 to determine whether the
government can produce evidence sufficient to support a finding that the camera is what the
government purports it to be in light of the circumstances surrounding the discovery and the
possession of the camera by various government personnel who failed to maintain any chain of
custody or any documentation whatsoever concerning the whereabouts chronologically of the
camera.

5. Relief Requested. That the camera not be admitted into evidence.

6. Burden of Proof. In accordance with M.R.E. 901, the government has the burden of proving

of producing evidence sufficient to support a finding that a valid chain of custody can be
established to support a determination of authenticity regarding the camera.

I

Appellate Exhibit
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7. Oral Argument. The defense requests oral argument.
Very respectfully,

J. W. Carver

Civilian Defense Counsel for * Lt Christopher F.
Patterson, USMC

I
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
On 15 June 2022, I caused this document to be served upon all counsel and the court.
Dated: 15 June 2022 Very respectfully,

J. W. CARVER, Declarant

Appellaie Exhibit __ x
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UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

GOVERNMENT OPPOSITION TO
DEFNSE MOTION IN LIMINE TO
EXCLUDE CAMERA EVIDENCE BASED
ON VALID CHAIN OF CUSTODY

UNITED STATES

V.

CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON
FIRST LIEUTENANT

U.S. MARINE CORPS 23 June 2022

e St et et et et St et

1. Nature of Response. The Government hereby opposes the Defense motion in limine to

exclude camera evidence based on the chain of custody. The Defense has not shown that the
chain of custody makes the camera footage inadmissible or unable to be authenticated. The
Government is respectfully requesting that the Court DENY Defense’s motion to exclude the
camera evidence due to the chain of custody.
2. Facts.
a. On 17 December 2020 SS U MC. 1t Intel Bn, 1 MIG, I MEF,
reported to NCIS the discovery of a camera, disguised as a pen, within the men’s
restroom within building 210821 aboard Camp Pendleton, California.'
b. On 17 December 2020, NICS interviewed SS || st inte! B, 1M1G, 1
MEF. SSgt-stated that around 0815 to 0830 he discovered what he believed to be a
video recording device disguised as a pen in building 210821. SS gt-grabbed the pen
and unscrewed the end cap and observed a SD memory card. Following his observation

of the memory card, he placed the device in his gym bag and subsequently handed it to

! Enclosure 1. Appellate Exhibit _xu (12

Page of




CWO2-utside in the parking lot. GySg-vas present in the

vehicle with CWOZ-nd witnessed the exchange.?

c. CWOZ-Was interviewed on 22 December 2020 and stated that he was given the
suspected recording device by SSgt-and did not disassemble it. He placed the device
in his driver side door and performed his job functions on base for the next two hours,
never leaving his car and the device unattended. At some point between 1100 to 1300 on
17 December 2020 CWO2 [Jranded the device to sSe I

d. On 18 December 2020 NCIS interviewed SSgt-who stated that upon receiving
the device from CWO2-he unscrewed the end cap and placed the device in an
unlocked phone locker in building 210722 aboard Camp Pendleton, California. He left

the device unattended for approximately one hour until he returned with GySgt-

e. On 6 January 2021 NCIS interviewed GySgt_who stated that he met

SSgtt the phone locker located in building 210722 aboard Camp Pendleton,
California. He handled the device with gloved hands and unscrewed the end cap and
visually inspected the device for a camera, microphone, and memory storage. He
concluded from his visual inspection that the device appeared to electronically record and
store video and audio media.’

f. SS stated that after the inspection by GyS he device was placed
g P

into a manila envelope and placed back into the unlocked mobile phone locker.®

2 Enclosure 2.
3 Enclosure 3.
* Enclosure 1.

> Enclosure 4. ibi
sEgzig:E;: N Appe!!ate Exhibit %1
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g. NCIS Special Agent-eceived the pen camera from SSgt-and

started an evidence disposal log.”
h. NCIS inspected the device and found footage of an individual in uniform with
nametape clearly visible. The individual was later positively identified as the
Accused.®
3. Law.

a. Law Regarding Relevance

ML.R.E. 401 provides that evidence is relevant if (1) it has a tendency to make a fact more
or less probable than it would be without the evidence; and (2) the fact is of consequence in
determining the action.” M.R.E. 403 provides that the military judge may exclude relevant
evidence if its probative value is substantially outweighed by a danger of one or more of the
following: unfair prejudice, confusing the issues, misleading the members, undue delay, wasting
time, or needlessly presenting cumulative evidence. !

A witness can testify to relevant evidence that survives the 403 balancing test “only if
evidence is introduced sufficient to support a finding that the witness has personal knowledge of
»ll

the matter” and said evidence “may consist of the witness” own testimony.

b. Law Regarding Authenticity and Chain of Custody

M.R.E. 901 states that a witness with knowledge may testify that an item is what it is

claimed to be and such testimony may be used to authenticate or identify an item of evidence.

7 Anticipated testimony of SA-and Enclosure 5.
8 Enclosure 6.

IM.R.E. 401.
10 M.R.E. 403 .
I MRE. 602, Appellate Exhibit  x3i
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In United States v. Gonzales, 37 ML.J. 456 the defense challenged the admission of
appellant’s urine sample prior to the time the sample was sealed and marked for transportation to
the laboratory, alleging the prosecution had not established that the urine tested was the
appellant’s. The Court stated in their opinion “To rebut a chain of custody challenge to the
admission of evidence, the prosecution is not required to “exclude every possibility of
tampering.” Instead, Courts say that its burden is to satisfy the military judge "that in reasonable
probability the article has not been changed in important respects." 9 MJ at 291, quoting West v.
United States, 359 F.2d 50, 55 (8th Cir.), cert. denied, 385 U.S. 867, 87 S.Ct. 131, 17 L.Ed.2d 94
(1966).”'? In United States v. Harris, 55 M.I. 433 the appellant argued the evidence from a
bank’s video surveillance camera was inadmissible as substantive evidence because it was not
properly authenticated. The court in its opinion stated that “Current computer technology makes
alteration of photographs a possibility any time that photographs are used. However, the
Government need only show by direct or circumstantial evidence a "reasonable probability" that
the evidence is authentic.” (citing United States v. Maxwell, 38 M.J. 148, at 150-151)."

Further the chain of custody goes to the weight, not the admissibility of evidence as
evidenced in United States v. Harris, 55 M.J. 433 that “In addition, a mere claim that
photographs may be altered should not bar their admission. The proponent is not required to
prove a negative. Gaps in the chain of custody "go to the weight of the evidence, rather than its
admissibility." Id. at 152 (quoting United States v. Olson, 846 F.2d 1103, 1117 (7th Cir.

1988)).1

2 Enclosure 5 - United States v. Gonzales, (C.A.AF. 1993) 37 M.J. 456, at 457. o
13 Enclosure 6 - United States v. Harris, (C.A.A.F. 2001} 55 M.1. 433, at 440. Appellate Exhibit
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4. Analysis.

Despite Defense’s assertions, the evidence supports admission of the camera recordings
due to the witness testimony of the presence of the object from initial seizure to transfer of
custody to NCIS. Although the camera was handled by multiple government employees the
camera was not changed in important respects, all handling concerned the end cap of the camera
to examine its ability to record and whether there was the presence of a memory device. The
camera was placed in an unlocked phone locker for a period of time between the first and second
inspection, the individual who had initially inspected the camera was present while the second
inspection was performed and did not state there were any differences. Between the second and
third inspection the camera was placed in the same locker, this time in a manila envelope. NCIS
then retrieved the camera and began their inspection of the device.

The Government does not have to exclude every possibility of tampering and in this case
a reasonable probability exists that the camera was not changed in important respects. The
crucial evidence in question for admissibility is not the physical camera itself, but rather the
memory card contained within it. At no point did any witness who had custody of the camera
state that the memory card was removed, switched, or analyzed until it reached NCIS. NCIS did
not report any abnormalities in their review of the condition or presence of the memory device.
The Government only needs to show a reasonable probability that the evidence is authentic. In
Harris the court also looked to the content of the photographs to determine that it was reasonable
that the evidence was authentic. The court looked at the time and date signature on the

photographs, and the appearance of the drive-up lanes of the bank in question to determine to

Appellate Exhibit x5
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help determine the authenticity. The same can be done here due to the presence of the accused in
the videos setting up the camera for its recording. '’
5. Evidence. In support of its motion, the Government offers the following:

Enclosure 1: NCIS IA Interview of SSgt
Government MIL — M.R.E. 404(b)).
Enclosure 2: NCIS IA Interview of SSgt
Enclosure 3: NCS IA Interview of CWO?2
Enclosure 4: NCIS TA Interview of GySgt
Enclosure 5: Evidence Custody Log for Pen Camera

Enclosure 6: Videos of the Accused placing Pen Camera (previously provided as
Enclosure 3 in the Government MIL — M.R.E. 404(b)).

reviously provided as Enclosure 1 in the

The Government intends to call SA-in support of its motion.

6. Relief Requested. The Government requests the Court DENY Defense’s motion in limine to
exclude the camera recordings.

7. Burden of Proof. As the proponent of the evidence, the Government bears the burden of

6

proof that these acts occurred, by a preponderance of the evidence. '

8. Oral Argument. The Government respectfully requests oral argument on the matter.

K. D. CARTER

Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel

! Enclosure 6. AppeHate Exhibit
¥ R.C.M. 905(c)(Z)A). FPa ge & Ofﬁiﬁﬁ
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Certificate of Service

I hereby attest that a copy of the foregoing response was served on the Court and opposing
counsel via the WJC SharePoint on 22 June 2022.

K.D. CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel
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WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS FIRST
LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F.
PlaintifT, PATTERSON’S MOTION PURSUANT TO
R.C.M. 703(D) TO ORDER TH
v, ENT TO EMPLOY_
SY.D, AS A FORENSIC
CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON, PSYCHOLOGICAL CONSULTANT
First Lieutenant, U.S. Marine Corps,
Date: 28 June 2022
Accused. Time: 0900
Location: Military Courthouse, MCB CP

1. Nature of the Motion: The accused, hereinafter “I1*Lt Patterson,” moves the Court pursuant to

R.C.M. 703(d)(1) to order the government to employ_Psy.D., a psychologist, as

an expert in severe mental diseases and defects to provide consulting services to aid the defense in

preparation for trial.

2. Statement of Facts: 1stLt Patterson stands accused of multiple specifications of violating

Article 120c - indecent recording. He is also charged with one specification of violating Article
133 - conduct unbecoming an officer. The alleged conduct giving rise to these specifications did
not involve violence, weapons, drugs, money, hate, love, property, poverty, revenge; i.e, the
common motivators leading to the commission of crimes. 1* Lt Patterson has no criminal record.
There is no evidence that 1* Lt Patterson ever previously experienced disciplinary issues or was
the subject of counseling for misconduct of any kind. In short, the only apparent and remaining
explanation for the alleged conduct in this case is mental illness experienced by 1¥ Lt Patterson at
the time the conduct occurred. The government has made a motion for a R.C.M. 706 inquiry into
the mental capacity and/or mental responsibility of 1* Lt Patterson. The Court has granted that
motion and ordered the R.C.M. 706 inquiry. That inquiry is pending.

On 1 June 2022, in accordance with the court-ordered milestones set out in the Trial

Management Order (‘TMQO?’), the defense emailed the government a request that it employ-

Appellate Exhibit _x
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-Psy.D., a psychologist, to provide expert consulting services to assist the defense in
preparing for trial. A copy of the 1 June 2022-email, sent at 1342, is attached as “Exhibit A.”
Accompanying the email was a formal, written expert consultant request with supporting
declaration of counsel and exhibits. See, “Exhibit B.”

Twenty-four (24) minutes later, at 1406 on ! June 2022, the government responded to
“Exhibit A” and “Exhibit B,” with an email requesting the defense augment its request for
employment of Dr.-with “evidence for the ‘good faith and substantial belief” that [1¥ Lt
Patterson] had a “severe mental disease or defect on which to rely.” See, “Exhibit C.”

At 1746 on 1 June 2022, the defense emailed the government a revised request for Dr.

-expert consulting services. See, “Exhibit D.” The email was accompanied by a revised,
formal, written request for Dr.-expert consulting services. See, “Exhibit E.”

On 6 June 2022, the government emailed the defense, writing, “CG’s decision on [the
defense] expert witness request is attached.” See, “Exhibit F.” The email was accompanied by a
6 June 2022-First Endorsement on “Exhibit D.” See, “Exhibit G.” Adhering to the highest
standards of terseness, the Convening Authority’s First endorsement essentially stated succinctly:
“Your request for approval of funding to employ Dr._as a defense expert
consultant is denied.” No explanation was offered, no rationale for the decision was provided, no
basis for the denial was mentioned.

Two minutes later, the defense emailed the government to ask: “Does the command plan
to grant an alternative expert?” See, “Exhibit H.” One minute later, the government replied by
email, “[w]e would have to discuss with the [Convening Autherity]. It will likely depend on the
results of the 706 I imagine.” See, “Exhibit 1.”

3. Discussion, The Manual for Courts-Martial (2019 ed.), states at R.C.M. 703(d)(1):
“(d) Employment of expert witnesses and consultants. (1) In
general. When the employment at Government expense of an

expert witness or consultant is considered necessary by a party, the

Appellate Exhibit __ x, v
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party shall, in advance of employment of the expert, and with notice
to the opposing party, submit a request to the convening authority
to authorize the employment and to fix the compensation for the
expert. The request shall include a complete statement of reasons
why employment of the expert is necessary and the estimated cost
of employment.”

Based upon all the exhibits submitted herewith, it appears reasonably clear that the defense
has more than substantially complied with the requirements of R.C.M. 703(d)(1) so as to have
justified approval of its request that the government employ Dr.-to assist the defense in
preparation for trial. Moreover, the government by its R.C.M. 706 motion has exhibited concerns
about 1¥ Lt Patterson’s mental competence. The Court’s granting of the government’s R.C.M.
706 motion would seemingly confirm the government’s and the defense’s concerns. Given that
the Court, the government and the defense all appear to harbor the same concern about 1¥ Lt
Patterson’s mental fitness, it follows that this motion should be granted.

“Exhibit I,” also supports the granting of this motion. By that exhibit, the government
advised the defense that whether the government would “grant an alternative expert[?],” would
“depend on the results of the 706.” If that is truly the case, then the Court should grant this
motion presently for the following reasons. Either the R.C.M. 706 inquiry will result in a finding
that 19 Lt Patterson was mentally competent at the time of the alleged offenses or not. Ifthe 706
Board’s determination is “yes,” then the defense will certainly be justified in requesting a second
opinion. If the answer is “no,” then the defense will clearly be justified in ferreting out the extent
of the mental incompetence to demonstrate that it existed at the time the alleged offenses
occurred.

4. This Court Should Conduct An Evidentiary Hearing. It is respectfully requested that the

Court convene an evidentiary hearing pursuant to R.C.M. 703(d)(2) which reads:
“(2) Review by mulitary judge. (A) A request for an expert

witness or consultant denied by the convening authority may be

Appellate Exhibit _x v
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renewed after referral of the charges before the military judge who
shall determine— (i) in the case of an expert witness, whether the
testimony of the expert is relevant and necessary, and, if so,
whether the Government has provided or will provide an adequate
substitﬁte; or (i) in the case of an expert consultant, whether the
assistance of the expert is necessary for an adequate defense. (B) If
the military judge grants a motion for employment of an expert or
finds that the Government is required to provide a substitute, the
proceedings shall be abated if the Government fails to comply with
the ruling. In the absence of advance authorization, an expert
witness may not be paid fees other than those to which they are

entitled under subparagraph {g)(3)(E).”

5. Relief Requested. That the government be ordered to employ Dr.-as an expert

consultant to assist the defense in its preparation for trial,

6. Burden of Proof. In accordance with M.R.E. 905, the burden of proof shall be by a

preponderance of evidence and the burden of persuasion shall be on the moving party; in this case,

the defense.

7. Oral Argument. The defense requests oral argument.

Very respectfully,

J. W. Carver
Civilian Defense Counsel for 1 Lt Christopher F.
Patterson, USMC

4 Appellate Exhibit__&g____
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
On 15 June 2022, I caused this document to be served upon all counsel and the court.

Dated: 15 June 2022 Very respectfull

J. W. CARVER, Declarant

Appellate Exhibit _ w3
Page 5  of w®




UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT OPPOSITION TO
DEFENSE MOTION TO COMPEL
V. (Forensic Psychologist)
CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON
FIRST LIEUTENANT

U.S. MARINE CORPS

23 June 2022

i R N

1. Nature of Response. The Government hereby opposes the Defense motion to compel a

forensic psychologist. The Defense has not shown why a forensic psychologist is necessary for
an adequate defense or why the lack of forensic psychologist would result in a fundamentally
unfair trial, their motion should be DENIED.
2. Facts.
a. The Government generally concurs with the Defense statement of facts for the limited
purpose of this motion. The Government does not concur with Defense facts in the first

paragraph of (2. Statement of Facts) of the Defense motion. The Government adds the

below additional facts.

b. Over an approximately three year period the Accused made numerous surreptitious
recordings of multiple nude males. !

¢. Many of these videos show the Accused deliberately placing the camera in a way to get a
good angle for these recordings.?

d. In his interrogation, the Accused stated he recorded people surreptitiously to gratify

! Enclosure 1 and Enclosure 2.
- A late Exhibit xy 1Ll
ppellate Xy I
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himself and he enjoyed the people unaware they were being recorded.’

e. The Accused also admitted that he should have told the people they were being recorded
and he deleted some of the videos out of guilt once he got over the excitement of the
recording.?

f. The Accused previously searched for “Spy Cameras” online.”

g. The Government does not intend to call an expert witness forensic psychologist or
psychiatrist in its case in chief at this point in time.®

h. The Government intends to supplement this motion with the R.C.M. 706 examination
“short form” if it is received prior to the Article 39(a) session.”

3. Law.

a. Law Regarding Expert Consultants

Rule for Court-Martial (R.C.M.) 703(d)(2)}{A)(ii) states that a request for an expert consultant
denied by the convening authority may be renewed after referral of the charges before the
military judge who shall determine whether the assistance of the expert is necessary for an
adequate defense. “An accused is entitled to an expert’s assistance before trial to aid in the
preparation of his defense upon a demonstration of necessity.”® “Necessity” is more “than a mere

»? The accused must show a reasonable

possibility of assistance from a requested expert.
probability exists both that (1) “an expert would be of assistance to the defense” and (2) “that

denial of expert assistance would result in a fundamentally unfair trial.”'® To show that an expert

3 Enclosure 3 at 1:02:00-1:03:00

41d. at 1.03:45-1.04:07

3 Enclosure 4.

5 Trial Counsel Proffer.

7 Trial Counsel Proffer.

8 United States v. Bresnahan, 62 M.J, 137, 143 (C.A.AF. 2001) (internal citations omitted).

9 Id.; see also United States v. Liovd, 69 M.1. 95, 99 (C.A.A.F. 2010) (*[t]he defense’s stated desire to ‘explor[e] all
possibilities, however, does not satisfy the requisite showing of necessity.”).

10 Bresnahan, 62 M.J. at 143.

Appellate Exhibit _XV I
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would assist the Defense, the Defense must show “(1) why the expert assistance is needed, (2)
what the expert assistance would accomplish for the accused, and (3) why the defense counsel
are unable to gather and present the evidence that the expert assistance would be used to
develop.”!!

Repeatedly, CAAF has drawn a sharp distinction between necessity and helpfulness and
concluded that an accused’s trial is not fundamentally unfair simply because the Government did
2

not pay for an expert to screen or evaluate evidence. !

b. Law regarding R.C.M. 916(k) — Lack of Mental Responsibility

The military judge must instruct upon all special defenses raised by the evidence. The test is
whether the record contains some evidence as to each element of the defense to which the trier of
fact may attach credit if it so desires.'? A defense may be raised by evidence presented by the
defense, the Government, or the court-martial.* In deciding whether the defense is raised, the
military judge is not to judge credibility or prejudge the evidence and preclude its introduction
before the court members.!> A defense is not raised, however, if it is wholly incredible or
unworthy of belief.'® The Accused has the burden of proving the defense of lack of mental

responsibility by clear and convincing evidence.'’

12 United States v. Freeman, 65 M.J. 451, 458 (C.A.A.F. 2008) (internal citation omitted),

12 See, e.g., Freeman, 65 M.J. at 459 (affirming the military judge’s denial of a motion to compel expert assistance
where, “[a]lthough it is by no means clear that the expert would add anything that could not be expected of
experienced defense counsel, we also accept arguendo that Appellant’s counsel could benefit from the consultant’s
assistance.”}; United States v. Bresnahan, 62 M.J. 137, 143 (C.A.A.F. 2005) (affirming the military judge’s denial of
a motion to compel expert assistance while accepting, arguendo, that the expert in question “possessed knowledge
and expertise in the area of police coercion beyond that of the defense counsel and that the defense counsel could
benefit from his assistance.”).

" United States v. Ferguson,15 M 1. 12 (C.M.A. 1983); United States v. Tan, 43 C.M.R. 636 (A.CM.R. 1971); see
also United States v. Jackson, 12 M.J. 163 (C.M.A. 1982); United States v. Jett, 14 M.J. 941(A.C.M.R. 1982).

¥ R.C.M. 916(b) discussion; United States v. Rose, 28 M.J. 132 (C.M.A. 1989).

5 United States v.Tulin, 14 M.J, 695 (N.M.C.M.R. 1982).

¥ UnitedStates v. Brown, 19 CM.R. 363 (C.M.A. 1955); United States v. Franklin, 4 M.J. 635(A.F.C.M.R. 1977).
TR.CM. 916(b)(2)

Appellate Exhibit _Xvi
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The lack of mental responsibility defense is codified in Article 50a, UCMJ. It is an
affirmative defense in a trial by court-martial that, at the time of the commission of the acts
constituting the offense, the accused, as a result of a severe mental disease or defect, was unable
to appreciate the nature and quality or the wrongfulness of the acts. Mental disease or defect does
not otherwise constitute a defense.'® A severe mental disease or defect “does not include an
abnormality manifested only by repeated criminal or otherwise antisocial conduct, or minor
disorders such as nonpsychotic behavior disorders and personality defects.”!® Prior to the current
standard codified in Article 50a, UCMLI, the standard was as follows: “A person is not
responsible for criminal conduct if at the time of such conduct as a result of mental disease or
defect he lacks substantial capacity either to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to
conform his conduct to the requirements of the law.”2?

A mental condition not amounting to a lack of mental responsibility (i.c., a finding of not
guilty only by reason of lack of mental responsibility) is not an affirmative defense, but may be
admissible to determine whether the accused entertained the state of mind necessary to prove an
clement of the offense. In other words, partial mental responsibility is not an affirmative defense,
but it is a deficiency of the government proof of a necessary element (e.g., specific intent).?!
Testimony from an expert forensic psychologist may be used for mitigation purposes in

sentencing whether or not it is also used for a lack of mental responsibility defense.

4. Analysis.

18 RCM 916(k)(1).

1P RCM 706(c)(2)(A) (emphasis added).

% United States v.Frederick, 3 M.I. 230, 234 (C.MLA. 1977). See also United States v. Daly, 1987 CMR LEXIS 712
(N.M.C.M. 1987) (holding an Accused convicted of offenses concerning voyeurism was mentally responsible under
the old Fredericks test).

I R.CM. 916(k)(2) discussion.

2 See United States v. Baratta, 77 M.I. 691 (N.M.C.C.A. 2018) (discussing how an Accused in a remarkably similar
case had a low risk of recidivism during the Defense sentencing case).
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a. The Defense has Failed to meet their Buden

The Defense has failed to meet its burden under every prong of the Freeman test. The
Defense states the forensic psychologist is needed to assist with a possible lack of mental
responsibility defense, however the Defense has provided no evidence to support this claim
absent their initial expert consultant request. The Defense has provided no evidence showing
what “voyeuristic disorder” is, whether the Accused has actually been diagnosed with this
disorder, or how voyeuristic disorder is a severe mental disease or defect that would prevent the
Accused from appreciating the nature and quality or the wrongfulness of the acts. Defense has
stated these things, but have provided no actual evidence. Proffers from Counsel are not
evidence. The Defense also could have attached an affidavit from Dr.-to support their
position on these matters but have failed to do so. The burden is on the Defense by a
preponderance of the evidence and they have provided no evidence for any prong of the
Freeman test. Accordingly, the Defense motion should be denied based on this alone.

The Evidence does not Support that the Accused could not Appreciate the Nature and Quality of

the Wrongfulness of his Acts.

If, hypothetically, the Court did have sufficient evidence to believe the Defense satisfied the
three prongs of the Freeman test showing how the expert would be helpful, denial of this expert
would not result in a fundamentally unfair trial. The evidence the Court does have before it show
the following: (1) the Accused discreetly placing the recording device in a manner to capture
people nude; (2) the Accused ensuring the recording device captures a good angle; and (3) the
Accused’s own admission that he knew surreptitiously recording people in the nude was wrong.
Also, the fact that the Accused searched for, and subsequently purchased, a spy camera shows

that he was attempting to refine his techniques for surreptitiously recording people. This leads to
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the logical inference that the Accused knew that to keep committing these offenses ensuring he
did not get caught was of the utmost importance and purchasing a more discreet device would
assist with this.

For the defense of lack of mental responsibility to even be raised the Court must determine
whether the defense is wholly incredible or unworthy of belief. Here, the Court does not even
have any evidence from the Defense to consider the merits of their assertions. The evidence the
Court does have shows an acknowledgement of wrongfulness (i.e. appreciation of the
wrongfulness of the acts), and a pattern of behavior indicative of the Accused trying to avoid
being caught (i.e. appreciation of the nature and quality of the acts).

Finally, the specific nature of this asserted disorder (voyeuristic disorder) seems to fit
squarely within the following language from R.C.M. 706: “A severe mental disease or defect
“does not include an abnormality manifested only by repeated criminal or otherwise antisocial
conduct, or minor disorders such as nonpsychotic behavior disorders and personality defects.”
Surreptitiously recording people nude for a three year period is repeated criminal and antisocial
conduct. A disorder of this nature, acknowledging Defense has not shown evidence the Accused
even has it, is explicitly contemplated in R.C.M. 706 as something that is nof a severe mental
disease or defect.

Although this issue was litigated and reviewed in the Daly case, the facts and law here are
distingunishable. In the Daly case, multiple experts testified about voyeuristic disorder and
counsel argued about member instructions regarding lack of mental responsibility.?® This biggest
difference is that the Daly court was operating under the old Frederick lack of mental

responsibility standard. That standard included the language “lacks substantial capacity either to

% United States v. Daly, 1987 CMR LEXIS 712 (N.M.C.M. 1987) Appellate Exhibit
Pagu "sf 0
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appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to conform his conduct to the requirements of the
law.”** The Defense expert in that case focused much of their testimony on the latter part of that
standard, whether the Accused was unable to conform his conduct to the requirements of the
law.?® The Appellate Court also focused on this because it was undisputed the Accused had
voyeuristic disorder. The Appellate Court also highlighted the Accused otherwise meritorious
and law abiding behavior as evidence that the Accused could conduct himself in accordance with
the law.?8

In the present case, the new standard for a lack of mental responsibility defense is more
difficult for the Defense to meet. Defense now has to show the Accused was unable to appreciate
the nature and quality or the wrongfulness of the acts. They can no longer argue that the mental
disease or defect was just of a nature to make the Accused unable to conform to the law. The
Accused in this case has an otherwise normal and unremarkable term of service absent the
crimes he is charged with. Just as the Daly court noted, otherwise normal service shows that an
Accused can normally conduct themselves in accordance with the law. The Accused in this case
has done so. Accordingly, even under the less burdensome standard the Daly Court utilized, they
found the Accused was mentally responsible. The evidence the Government has provided shows
the Accused did appreciate the nature, quality, and wrongfulness of his acts through the nature of
how he committed these offenses, his admission of guilty, and otherwise normal career where he

remained out of trouble.

BId at7.
B
214
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For these reasons, the Government posits that this case does not warrant a lack of mental
responsibility defense and denial of this expert would not make the trial fundamentally unfair as
this issue has already been litigated under a less burdensome standard and failed.

The R.C.M. 706 Examination

The Defense is correct that the Government moved for, and the Court granted, an R.C.M. 706
examination. As stated in that motion, the primary reason for this was for judicial economy.
Considering the only bar on the Court for not granting R.C.M. 706 motions is whether the
motion is frivolous or not led the Government to believe that if the Defense made the motion the
Court would grant it. The Government would rather address all pre-trial matters such as mental
responsibility at the earliest opportunity. If the Government waited for the Defense to file that
motion or for the Court to order it be done sua sponte, there would be a high chance of a lengthy
continuance. Especially considering R.C M. 706 examinations take months to complete. Further,
confidential communications between Defense Counsel and Accused are, by itself, enough to
warrant an R.C.M. 706 examinations. The initial Defense request was sufficient in that regard.

However, the standard when the Defense seeks to compel an expert are very different than a
request for an R.C.M. 706 examination. For this motion, the burden is on the Defense bya
preponderance of the evidence. The burden is not to show just enough to make the motion not
frivolous. The fact that an R.C.M. 706 examination has been ordered should have no bearing on
the Court’s decision regarding this motion.

Partial Lack of Mental Resposnibility

Although not mentioned by the Defense, their motions also seems to indicate a potential
partial of lack of mental responsibility defense. As cited in the previous case, a partial lack of

mental responsibility defense may be used to negate specific intent. In this case, the Article 120c
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offenses and the Article 133 offense are general intent crimes. The knowledge requirement for
the Article 120c offenses only contemplates whether the Accused intended to do a certain
criminal act, in this case record people in the nude. There is no intent required to achieve a
specific outcome. Accordingly, partial lack of mental responsibility is not applicable in this case.
5. Evidence. In support of its motion, the Government offers the following:

Enclosure 1. Videos the Accused took of the OCS Victims (previously provided as
Enclosure 14 in the Government MIL — M.R.E. 404(b)).

Enclosure 2: Videos the Accused took of the rest of the Named Victims at the Page
Fieldhouse.

Enclosure 3: The Accused’s Interrogation (previously provided as Enclosure 7 in the
Government MIL — M.R.E. 404(b)).

Enclosure 4: NCIS IA Full Review of iPhone (previously provided as Enclosure 12 in the
Government MIL ~ M.R.E. 404(b)).

6. Relief Requested. The Government respectfully requests that this Court DENY the Defense

motion to compel.

7. Burden of Proof. The Defense bears the burden by a preponderance of the evidence.

8. Oral Argument. The Government respectfully requests oral argument.

K. D. CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps

Trial Counsel
s o s s 2k ok 3 s ofe sie sfe sl s sle ke o ol ool o o sle oo ok ok o ot e ok sfe b sl sl st sh sk ek sl ol sl ook ok sk ok sl R sk e e ke e ok R s ok e ek ke

Certificate of Service

I'hereby attest that a copy of the foregoing response was served on the Court and opposing
counsel via the WJC SharePoint on 22 June 2022.

K.D.CARTER

Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel
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WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS FIRST
LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F.
Plaintiff, PATTERSON’S MOTION PURSUANT TO
M.R.E. 304 AND 305 TO SUPPRESS HIS
V. STATEMENTS TO LAW ENFORCEMENT
BASED UPON VIOLATIONS OF M.R.E.
CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON, 305, U.C.M.J. ARTICLE 31, AND THE 5™
First Lieutenant, U.S. Marine Corps, AMENDMENT
Accused.

1. Nature of the Motion: The accused, hereinafter “1°Lt Patterson,” moves the Court pursuant to

Military Rules of Evidence, Rule 304 and Rule 305, to suppress all evidence considered to be the
product of an unlawful interrogation conducted on 17 December 2021, in violation of M.R.E.
Rule 305, U.C.M.J. Article 31, and the 5™ Amendment. 1% Lt Patterson also moves the Court to
suppress all evidence considered to be derivative of, and/or discovered as a consequence of, the
earlier unlawful interrogation (i.e., fruit of the poisonous tree), to include, but not be limited to,
any and all incriminating admissions and statements made in the immediate aftermath of any
subsequent search and seizure, as well as any and all evidence obtained from 1% Lt Patterson’s cell
phone(s), vehicle(s), and/or residence, and other locations pursuant to searches and seizures
regardless of whether or not 1* Lt Patterson consented thereto, inasmuch as such consent is
considered to be the result of the earlier unlawful interrogation.

2. Statement of Facts: 1™ Lt Patterson is attached to Combat Logistics Regiment (‘CLR”) 17, Ist

Marine Logistics Group (‘MLG’). On the evening of Friday, 17 December 2021, at 2037, 1¥ Lt
Patterson was at home when he received a telephone message from the CLR-17 Regimental
Executive Officer (XO), LtCol_ See, attached Declaration of 1% LT Patterson,
paragraph 2. The message directed 1* Lt Patterson to return the XO’s call. 1d., at para. 3. Upon
hearing the message, 1°" Lt Patterson immediately called the XO who ordered 1 Lt Patterson to

report to his office “now.” Id., at para. 4 & 5. The XO then asked 1* Lt Patterson how long it
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would take for him to get to the XO’s office and 1¥ Lt Patterson replied “about 30-minutes.” Id.,
at para. 6. After the call, 1* Lt Patterson dressed into the uniform of the day and drove to Camp
Pendleton to report as ordered. Id., at para. 7. It was about 2045 when he left his home. Id., at
para. 8.

1* Lt Patterson arrived at the regimental office at about 2100. The XO took 1% Lt
Patterson into the XO’s office and closed the door. Id., at para. 9. The XO told 1 Lt Patterson,
“NCIS wants to talk with you about something. We are going to take you down there.” Id., para.
10. The XO then ordered 1* Lt Patterson to “answer their questions and not to squirrel
around with them.” Id., para. 11. The XO’s exact words were: “When you get there, do not
squirrel around with them. Just answer their questions.” Id., para. 12. The XO then asked 1¥ Lt
Patterson if he understood. Id., para. 13. 1* Lt Patterson replied, “Yes sir.” Id., 14. The XO did
not tell 1% Lt Patterson of what he was suspected and the XO did not administer 1* Lt Patterson
Article 31(b) rights or warnings.

Per the XO’s orders, 1* Lt Patterson immediately departed for the Naval Criminal

Investigative Service (‘NCIS’) Marine Corps West Field Office located at_
_15‘ Lt Patterson was not permitted to drive himself. Instead,

he was ordered to use the Duty Driver and he was escorted by Captain-USMC. They
arrived at the NCIS Field Office about 2110.!

Upon his arrival, 1% Lt Patterson was directed to wait while two NCIS Special Agents
readied the interrogation room. At 1925:16, according to the date-time stamp on the NCIS video
of the interview, the two Special Agents escorted 1*Lt Patterson into the interrogation room.

From 1925:16 until 1938:51, about 13-minutes elapsed time, the Special Agents engaged
in small talk. At 1938:45, one of the Special Agents brought out the customary Article 31(b)

'Times indicated up to this point in the Statement of Facts are based upon 1% Lt
Patterson’s attached declaration and the accompanying “Exhibit A.” For the Court’s and
counsel’s convenience and ease of reference in reviewing the NCIS interview video, times
indicated from this point onward, are stated as reflected in the date-time stamp on the NCIS
video, despite the fact that the defense does not consider these times accurate. The times
reflected on the video appear to the defense to be in error by a factor of about two hours slow.

Appellate Exhibit x X}

Page 2. of 4




¢ C

Acknowledgment of Rights and Waiver document. At 1938:56 this Special Agent, who
undertook the balance of questioning relevant to this motion, stated that he “just got to go over
this form with you.” This was followed at 1939:04 by a statement from the Special Agent that the
document was “just a piece of paper.” At 1940:51, the Special Agent further diminished the
significance of the Article 31b warnings by stating, “no way do I want you to think we are
accusing you of anything; we’re just here to find out some information.”

Up to this point, 16-minutes into the interrogation, 1* Lt Patterson had neither been
advised of what he was suspected, nor did he evidence any understanding of what he is going to
be questioned about. At 193%:42, the Special Agent read from the “piece of paper,” that 1* Lt
Patterson was suspected of “indecent viewing, visual recording or broadcasting.” 1* Lt Patterson
was asked 1f he knew what these terms meant and he replied, “yes,” at 1939:42. However, at
1942:31, 17 Lt Patterson explained, “T don’t know what the questions are going to be.” The
Special Agent replied at 1942:30: “We’ll get into that in just a second like I said, I just want to
get this [the execution of the Article 31(b) Acknowledgement] out of the way.” Despite having
had 1 Lt Patterson sign the Article 31(b) rights document, the Special Agents still did not advise
1* Lt Patterson of the conduct at issued, but had only read the words from the “piece of paper,”
that he was suspected of “indecent viewing, visual recording or broadcasting.”

Rather than describe to 1% Lt Patterson in real, factual terms the misconduct of which he
was suspected, the Special Agent instead asked 1¥ Lt Patterson at 1943:30: “Why do think that
you’re here?” 1% Lt Patterson responded by explaining that he had a suspicion of why he was in
the NCIS office, but denied any direct involvement with the actual crime. The Special Agents
allowed 1¥Lt Patterson to go on for about 10-minutes until 1953, 30-minutes into the
interrogation, when they advised 1* Lt Patterson of the actual accusations and the fact that they
had the proof of his crimes.

Not only did the NCIS Special Agent unreasonably delay the notice to 1™ Lt Patterson of
the acts he was suspected of committing, the Special Agent also sought to deter 1¥ Lt Patterson

from invoking his right to counsel. At 1954:20, the Special Agent told 1¥Lt Patterson “You seem
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like a really good dude, it’s a shame we had to meet this way. I don’t want you to walk out of
here and me have to, you know, tell your boss, you know, that -you know, lied to us.” 1%
Lt Patterson asked at 1954:50: “Do you think I should probably get a lawyer than just talk?” The
Special Agent told 1* Lt Patterson that hiring a lawyer was his call, but at 1955:53, the Special
Agent went further and told 1* Lt Patterson, “I want to be able to help you tell your side of the
story[.]” as if to suggest hiring a lawyer would only thwart the Special Agent’s desire to help.
3. Discussion.
A. EVIDENCE OBTAINED AS A RESULT OF AN

UNLAWFUL INTERROGATION BY A PERSON ACTING IN A

GOVERNMENTAL CAPACITY IS INADMISSABLE IF THE

ACCUSED TIMELY AND SUCCESSFULLY MOVES TO

SUPPRESS SUCH EVIDENCE.

Evidence which is the product of an unlawful interrogation is inadmissible at trial. Both
the primary evidence of the interrogation and the derivative evidence discovered as a result
thereof is to be excluded. Commonly known as the “Exclusionary Rule,” this rule is based upon
the landmark decision by the United States Supreme Court in Weeks v. United States, 232 U.S.
383 (1914). It was made specifically applicable to the military in Parker v. Levy, 417 U.S. 713
(1974) and is incorporated in the Manual for Courts-Martial as M.R.E. 304, This rule directs the
cxclusion of evidence which is the product of an involuntary statement.

The incriminating statements of 1® Lt Patterson were compelled by the Executive Officer’s
direct order that 1% Lt Patterson “not squirrel around and answer their questions.” See,
Declaration of 1* Lt Patterson. This order was given without the administration of Article 31
rights. The failure of the Executive Officer to give Article 31 warnings and, instead, order 1 Lt
Patterson to answer NCIS’s questions, was not only a violation of Article 31, it was a violation of
the Executive Officer’s training.

Military officers assuming the role of Commanding Officer, Commander, or Executive

Officer, receive general training on the military justice system and specific training in respect to
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Article 31. For example, the Army’s 2015 Commander’s Legal Handbook (Misc Pub 27-8)
published by the Army Judge Advocate General’s Legal Center and School, at pages 7 and 8,
states in part in the Introduction:
“B. Role of Commanders
Commanders are responsible for both enforcing the law,
protecting Soldiers’ rights, and protecting and caring for victims.”

{Emphasis added.]

C. Rights of Soldiers

The military justice system provides for certain fundamental
rights and safeguards that must be considered in any case involving
criminal conduct.

* * * % *
2. Legal Counsel and Right to Remain Silent
Laws prohibit compulsory self-incrimination and

provide that anyone suspected of committing a crime has the right
to consult with a lawyer. Congress realized that Soldiers may not
understand their rights and may be intimidated by the mere presence
of a superior. Therefore, under military law no one may question a
suspect without first determining that the suspect understands the
nature of the offense, the right to remain silent, and the right to
counsel. If interrogators violate these rights, the evidence obtained
may not be used agamst the accused. You must protect your unit
members’ rights and preserve the government’s case by
ensuring that your subordinate commanders understand and
comply with UCMJ, Article 31, and right-to-counsel

requirements.” [Emphasis added.]
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Navy and Marine Corps service members are no less protected by Article 31 than their
fellow service members in the Army. Likewise, Navy and Marine Corps commanders receive no
less struction and training on the importance and administration of Article 31 rights. The
USN/USMC Commander’s Quick Reference Legal Handbook (QUICKMAN) (March 2021 ed.),

available at http://www.jag.navy.mil/njs_publications.htm states in part at pages 12 and 13:

“QUESTIONING/INTERROGATING SUSPECTS AND

ARTICLE 31(B) RIGHTS

REFERENCES:

(a) Military Rule of Evidence (MRE) 301-305

{(b) Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMI) Art. 31(b)

(c) MILPERSMAN 1620-010 (d) JAGMAN Appendix A-1-(b-d)
(e) JAGMAN Appendix A-1-n (f) JAGMAN Appendix A-1-(k-1)
MAJOR CRIMINAL OFFENSES: Do not allow any command
member to question or interrogate a Service member before
discussing the case with a staff judge advocate and/or NCIS.
ALWAYS READ ARTICLE 31(b) RIGHTS: When (1) you
suspect a Service member of committing an offense punishable
under the UCMJ, and (2) you are going to ask the Service member
a question relating to the offensc (c.g., asking questions or making

statements that are likely to evoke an incriminating response).
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ARTICLE 31(b) RIGHTS:

. Service members are entitled to be informed of their
Article 31(b) rights when suspected of violating any
punitive article of the Uniform Code of Military
Justice, prior to being questioned regarding the
vipolation.

. Use the rights warning form [se¢ reference (e)].
Article 31(b) rights contained on the warning form
should always be read in their entirety before any
interrogation, however informal the questioning. Do
not ask the Service member any questions unless the
Service member has affirmatively waived the right to
remain silent and the right to a lawyer. This waiver
should be in writing.

. Article 31(b) rights waivers must be made freely,
knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently. It is
critical to ensure the Service member
understands his/her rights and understands the
consequences of waiving those rights.

. Once the Service member wants to remain silent or
asks for a lawyer, the command MUST NOT ask

any additional questions, even if the Service

member had previously waived his/her right to

remain silent and had answered questions.
PRIOR QUESTIONING WITHOUT RIGHTS WARNING:

Provide a “cleansing warning” if the Service member was

previously questioned and did not receive an Article 31(b) rights
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warning. To do this, (1) advise the Service member that the prior
statcment cannot be used against himvher, and (2) that even though
the Service member made the earlier statement, he/she can still
choose to remain silent and request a lawyer. Finally, (3) fully
advise the member of his/her rights using reference (e), and record
any waiver of those rights m writing. [Some of the Emphasis is
added, but most is in the original.]

X % ok k%
ARTICLE 31(b) AND NONJUDICIAL PUNISHMENT (NJP}): At
mast/office hours, only part of Article 31(b) is read. Sailors always
have the right to remain silent but do not have a right to an attorney
during mast. However, if it is reasonably foreseeable that an
accused will make an admission or actually does make an
admission that warrants court-martial punishment, the CO
should provide a full reading of all Article 31{b) rights and
execute a waiver [see reference (e)]. Only this waiver at
mast/office hours will protect the admissibility of such
confessions in court. That said, full rights warnings must be
given at all other stages in the process (e.g., prior to any
questioning by a supervisor, investigating officer, law
enforcement officer, disciplinary review board, or executive
officer inquiry). [Emphasis added.]

* = H £ ®
FALSE PROMISES OR THREATS: A confession must be
voluntary, DO NOT use threats or make false promises to elicit
an incriminating statement, because a military judge may later

determine that the statement is not admissible.” [Emphasis
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added.]

Based upon his training, 1* Lt Patterson’s Executive Officer should have administered
Article 31 rights at some point in his meeting with 1¥ Lt Patterson prior to ordering him to go to
NCIS; particularly since he had expressly ordered 1* Lt Patterson to “answer their questions.”
The failure of the Executive Officer to administer Article 31 rights combined with his ordering 1*
Lt Patterson to answer questions resulted in making 1 Lt Patterson’s statements involuntary and
inadmissible per M.R.E. 304.

During the 17 December 2020-NCIS interview, the Special Agents did not asked 1* Lt
Patterson if he had been ordered to speak with them and they did not administer any cleansing
warning to counter the XO’s order to “answer their questions.” Moreover, the NCIS Special
Agents treated the administration of the Article 31(b) warnings as perfunctory and a mere
administrative nicety. The questioning NCIS Special Agent told 1* Lt Patterson that the Article
31(b) Acknowledgement of Rights document was “just a piece of paper” and then said, “no way
do I want you to think we are accusing you of anything.”

In weighing his options, to include whether to demand the assistance of counsel, 1* Lt
Patterson had to consider the Executive Officer’s direct order as well as the statements of the
NCIS Special Agents that they would be reporting back to the command whatever 1* Lt
Patterson chose to do. When 1% Lt Patterson asked the Special Agents whether he should request
assistance of counsel, the Special Agents replied by basically warning 1* Lt Patterson that
invoking his right to counsel would be reported back to his command. 1% Lt Patterson reasonably
concluded that he would then be seen as “squirreling around,” just the thing his Executive Officer
had ordered him not to do less than a half-hour previous to the interview,

Moreover, by the time the NCIS Special Agents questioned 1* Lt Patterson, any statement
he made was a product of his Executive Officer’s order to ‘answer their questions,” and was an
order given without the administration of Article 31 rights. It is clear from the attached
Declaration of 1* Lt Patterson that he felt compelled to speak to the NCIS Special Agents given

the previous direct order from his Executive Officer that he “not squirrel around and to answer
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their questions.” The feeling of being compelled was reasonable under the circumstances. 1% Lt
Patterson is a junior officer in the Marine Corps. The order to “answer their questions” was not
only from a senior officer, it was from his Executive Officer and the officer who prepared his
Fitness Reports. The order was issued face-to-face. It was followed for emphasis by the
seemingly rhetorical question: “Do you understand?” There was no possible alternative way for
1* Lt Patterson to understand the order than that it was a direct order to answer NCIS’s
questions; particularly in light of the fact that the Executive Officer failed to give Article 31(b)
warnings and did not even tell 1¥ Lt Patterson of what he was accused or of what he was even
suspected. Without this information, ‘answer their questions,” was simply a direct order to
‘answer their questions,” and no further clarification was necessary, 1™ Lt Patterson’s statements
were not the result of a voluntary decision to speak, but rather were the product of a decision to
choose to whether to follow orders or not. Such statements are considered presumptively
involuntary.
B. EVIDENCE DERIVED OF STATEMENTS OF THE

ACCUSED TAKEN WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF ARTICLE

31(B) WARNINGS ARE INADMISSIBLE AND SHOULD BE

SUPPRESSED ALONG WITH ANY EVIDENCE

DERIVATIVE THEREOF.

The Supreme Court has held that the prosecution may not use statements, whether
exculpatory or inculpatory, stemming from a custodial interrogation of the defendant unless it
demonstrates the use of procedural safeguards effective to secure the privilege against seli-
incrimination. Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444 (1966). This rule is essentially made
applicable in the military setting by Article 31(b) and M.R.E. 305, which reads: “Warnings about
rights. (a) General rule. A statement obtained in violation of this rule is involuntary and will be
treated under Mil. R. Evid. 304.” The rule at subsection (2) defines an “Interrogation” as “any
formal or informal questioning in which an incriminating response is sought or is a

reasonable consequence of such questioning.” At subsection (3) “Custodial interrogation™ is
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defined as “questioning that takes place while the accused or suspect is in custody, could
reasonably believe himself or herself to be in custody, or is otherwise deprived of his or her
freedom of action in any significant way.”

1* Lt Patterson was ordered by his XO to go to NCIS and answer their questions. The
NCIS questioning at the NCIS Field Office clearly constituted a custodial interrogation where
voluntariness was required to be predicated on an effective, vahd warning of the right to remain
silent in accordance with Article 31. However, the XO had effectively poisoned the well. NCIS
did not inquire of I* Lt Patterson what he had been advised by the XO and, therefore, had no
knowledge of the requirement for a cleansing warning. The lake of knowledge, however, makes a
cleansing warning no less required, particularly when the questing NCIS Special Agents could
casily have acquired the knowledge by asking 1* Lt Patterson what his XO had told him before
being ordered to the NCIS office. The absence of a cleansing warning rendered the resulting
statement involuntary and therefore inadmissible.

C. IF THE GOVERNMENT CLAIMS 1" LT
PATTERSON WAIVED HIS ARTICLE 31(B) RIGHTS, THEN
THE GOVERNMENT MUST DEMONSTRATE THAT THE
ALLEGED WAIVER WAS VOLUNTARY, KNOWING, AND
INTELLIGENT.

In order for inculpatory statements made by an accused during custodial interrogation to
be admissible in evidence, the accused’s “waiver of Miranda rights must be voluntary, knowing
and intelligent.” United States v. Binder, 769 F.2d 595, 599 (9th Cir. 1985) (citing Miranda 384
U.S. at 479). See also Schneckloth v. Bustamonte, 412 U.S. 218 (1973). When interrogation
continues in the absence of an attorney, and a statement is taken, a heavy burden rests on the
government to demonstrate that the accused intelligently and voluntarily waived his privilege
against self-incrimination and his right to retained or appointed counsel. Miranda, 384 U.S. at
475. To satisfy this burden, the prosecution must introduce evidence sufficient to establish “that

under the ‘totality of the circumstances,’ the accused was aware of ‘the nature of the right being
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abandoned and the consequences of the decision to abandon it.” United States v. Garibay, 143
F.3d 534, 536 (9th Cir. 1998) (quoting Moran v. Burbine, 475 U.S. 412, 421 (1986). See also
United States v. Doe, 155 F.3d 1070, 1074 (9" Cir. 1998) (holding that the test for reviewing a
juvenile’s waiver of rights is identical to that of an adult’s and is based on the “totality of the
circumstances” (citing Fare v. Michael C., 442 U.S. 707, 725 (1979)).

As the Ninth Circuit reiterated, “[t]here is a presumption against waiver.” Garibay, 143
F.3d at 536, (citing United States v. Bernard S., 795 F.2d 749, 752 (9th Cir. 1986), in turn citing
Neorth Carolina v. Butler, 441 U.S. 369, 373 (1966)). The standard of proof for a waiver of this
constitutional right is high. Miranda, 384 U.S. at 475. See United States v. Heldt, 745 F.2d

1275, 1277 (9th Cir. 1984) (the burden on the government is great, the court must indulge every
reasonable presumption against waiver of fundamental constitutional rights) (citing Johnson v.
Zerbst, 304 US 458, 464 (1938). Accord Garibay, 143 F.3d at 537.

The validity of the waiver depends upon the particular facts and circumstances
surrounding the case, including the background, experience, and conduct of the accused.
Edwards v. Arizona, 451 U.S. 477, 482 (1981); Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 464 (1938).
See also United States v. Garibay, 143 F.3d at 536; United States v. Bernard S., 795 F.2d at 751

(“A valid waiver of Miranda rights depends upon the totality of the circumstances, including the
background, experience and conduct of the accused.”™). In Derrick v. Peterson, 924 F.2d 813 (9th
Cir. 1990), the Ninth Circuit confirmed that the issue of the validity of a Miranda waiver requires
a two prong analysis: the waiver must be both (1) voluntary and (2) knowing and intelligent. Id.
at 820. The voluntariness prong of this analysis “is equivalent to the voluntariness inquiry [under]
the [Fifth] Amendment . ...” Id.

The second prong, however, requiring that the waiver be “knowing and intelligent,”
mandates an mquiry into whether “the waiver [was] made with a full awareness both of the nature
of the right being abandoned and the consequences of the decision to abandon it.” Id. (quoting
Moran v. Burbine, 475 U.S. 412, 421 (1986)). Accord Garibay, 143 F.3d at 436. This inquiry

requires that the court determine whether “the requisite level of comprehension” existed before
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the purported waiver may be upheld. Id. Thus, “[o]nly if the "totality of the circumstances
surrounding the interrogation' reveal both an uncoerced choice and the requisite level of
comprehension may a court properly conclude that the Miranda rights have been waived.”
Derrick v. Peterson, 924 F.2d at 820 (quoting Moran v. Burbine, 475 U.S. at 521).

Unless and until Miranda warnings and a knowing and intelligent waiver are demonstrated
by the prosecution, no evidence obtained as result of the interrogation can be used against the
defendant. Miranda, 384 U.S. at 479. The government in the present case has the burden of

13" Lt Patterson was effectively apprised of his rights in full and that he intelligently

proving that
and voluntarily waived those rights. See United States v. Estrada-Lucas, 651 F.2d 1261, 1265
(9th Cir. 1980).
1* Lt Patterson is a young, Marine Corps officer. He has been trained to follow orders.
He was ordered to go to NCIS, to “not squirrel around,” and “to answer their questions.” Once
there, he received no cleansing wamning to counter the XO’s order to “answer their questions,”
which effectively was an order to 1" Lt Patterson that he relinquish his right to remain silent, He
was not apprised of the actual misconduct of which he was suspected until well into the
interrogation after he had made incriminating statements. The entire 17 December 2020-
statement of 1* Lt Patterson, and any subsequent statements, should be deemed inadmissible and
excluded.
D. ANY AND ALL EVIDENCE SEIZED AND/OR
STATEMENTS MADE AFTER THE 17 DECEMBER 2020-
STATEMENT ARE PRESUMPTIVELY DERIVATIVE
THEREOF, AND, THUS, SHOULD BE EXCLUDED.
Any statements by I* Lt Patterson to the government after 17 December 2020 and any
evidence seized after that date is presumptively fiuit of the poisonous tree, unless the government
can prove otherwise.

4. This Court Should Conduct An Evidentiary Hearing. [t is respectfully requested that the

Court convene an evidentiary hearing pursuant to M.R.E. 304(b) to determine the circumstances
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surrounding the XO’s 17 December 2022-meeting with 1* Lt Patterson and the subsequent NCIS
interview to determine based upon a totality of circumstances whether the resulting statements

were voluntary.

5. Relief Requested. That all statements of the 1* Lt Patterson suppressed and deemed

madmissible, and that any and all evidence derivative thereof be suppressed and deemed
inadmissible to include all 1% Lt Patterson’s subsequent statements and all evidence seized from 1*
Lt Patterson, including evidence from his personal cell phone(s), his personal vehicle(s), and/or his
personal residence.

6. Burden of Proof. In accordance with M.R.E. 304(f)(3) the government has the burden of

proving by a preponderance of evidence that 1* Lt Patterson statements were free and voluntary.

7. Oral Argument. The defense requests oral argument.

Very respectfully,

J. W. Carver
Civilian Defense Counsel

I
I
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UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT OPPOSITION TO
DEFENSE MOTION TO SUPPRESS

V. (Accused’s Statements)

CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON
FIRST LIEUTENANT
U.S. MARINE CORPS

23 June 2022

N N N N N N S N N

1. Nature of Response. The Government hereby opposes the Defense motion to suppress the

Accused’s statements to NCIS. The Government respectfully requests the Court DENY the
Defense motion.
2. Facts.

The Accused’s Background

a. The Accused is charged with multiple violations of Article 120c, UCMJ spanning a
period of approximately three years and one violation of Article 133, UCMJ.

b. The Accused is a [} year old First Lieutenant in the United States Marine
Corps.!

c. The Accused has a ||| | | Y - o AFQT score of [
with individual scores ||| | G -

d. The Accused is a graduate of Officer Candidate’s School, the Basic School, and the

Communications Officer Course.’

! Enclosure 1.
2 Enclosure 1 and Enclosure 2.
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e. The Accused has served as a Communications Officer, an Exercise Planner, and as a
Platoon Commander.*
17 December 2020

f. NCIS contacted Lieutenant Colone [ Lo D, te exccutive

officer of CLR-17.°

g. NCIS asked LtCol-if the command could bring the Accused to NCIS to speak
with them.®

h. At this time, all LtCol-knew was that the Accused placed a pen camerainal
MEF male head.”

i. In LtCol-experience, anytime NCIS sought to speak to a Marine within CLr-
17, NCIS would first contact the command and ask the command to bring the Marine to
NCIS.®

J.  Normally, if the Marine being questioned was enlisted, a First Sergeant or the Sergeant
Major would inform the Marine that they need to speak to NCIS and make arrangements
for the Marine to travel to the NCIS office.”

k. At the time of his statements to NCIS, the Accused was a First Lieutenant. '°

1. LtCol-decided that he should be the one to tell the Accused that NCIS needed to
speak with the Accused as a fellow officer.!!

m. LtCol-called the Accused’s cell-phone and asked for him to come to LtCol

* Enclosure 4.

’ Anticipated testimony of LtCOi-
& Id.

TId.

8 1d.

*Id.

10 Enclosure 5. hibit XxXa ¢
" Anticipated testimony of LtCol- ép peliate EX o f__;i’—
age e :
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n. While in LtCol-ofﬁce, LtCol-told the Accused that NCIS needed to

speak with him and a fellow officer the command would drive the Accused over to
NCIS.”

0. LtCol-emembers the meeting being very brief. '

p. LtCol- has no recollection of saying the phrase “squirrel around.”'”

q. LtCol -remembers trying to comfort the Accused, saying something to the effect

o I

The Accused’s Statements to NCIS

r. The Accused was interrogated by NCIS Special Agent_and Special Agent

2714

B4

4 rd

14

le Id

17 Enclosure 5 at 02:48-16:20.

18 Id . 1;,-‘

0 7d. at 16:25. 2 &
Page = of 1%




Id at 17:25.
Id. at 13:30
Id. at 19:00-19:30

Id: at 20:30 and Enclosure 6.

Id. at 21:10
Id. at 30:00
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jj. The total length of the interrogation was 3 hours, 59 minutes,*?

3. Law.

Rights Advisements and Voluntariness

Pursuant to Military Rules of Evidence (M.R.E.) 304(£)(6) and 304(f)(7), the Government
must show “by a preponderance of the evidence that a statement by the Accused was made
voluntarily.” Prior to an interrogation, an accused must be advised on his or her rights under
Article 31b, UCMI.* Specifically: Under M.R.E. 305(c)(1), a person subject to the UCMJ may
not interrogate “a person suspected of an offense without first: (A) informing the Accused or
suspect of the nature of the accusation;(B) advising the Accused or suspect that the Accused or
suspect has the right to remain silent; and (C) advising the Accused or suspect that any statement
made may be used as evidence against the Accused or suspect in a trial by court-martial.” A
statement made in violation of M.R.E. 305 is normally not admissible. M.R.E. 305(e) states in

relevant part:

B1d at32:24

2 Id. at 32:24-33:00

N Id. at 33:00

N Id.

32 Jd. at 14:30 (Note, this is found in “part 2" of Enclosure 5).

¥ Note, the Government asserts the initial gathering of biographical and administrative data was not “interrogation.”
¥ M.R.E. 305.
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After receiving applicable warnings under this rule, a person may waive the rights described
therein and in [M.R.E.] 301 and make a statement. The waiver must be made freely, knowingly,
and intelligently. A written waiver is not required. The accused or suspect must affirmatively
acknowledge that he or she understands the right involved, affirmatively decline the right to
counsel, and affirmatively consent to making such a statement.

The analysis for whether a statement is voluntary is “whether the confession is the product of
an essentially free and unconstrained choice by its maker. If, instead the maker’s will was
overborne and his capacity for self-determination critically impaired, use of the confession
would offend due process.”* This analysis is based upon review of the totality of
circumstances.*® This includes factors like age, education, and intelligence of the accused;
whether the accused has been informed of his constitutional rights; the length of the questioning;
the repeated and prolonged nature of the questioning; and the use of physical punishment, such
as the deprivation of food or sleep.?’

In determining that a statement is voluntary, it can be relevant if the accused attempted to
couch admissions in an exculpatory explanation.*® The inquiry is two-fold: was the waiver
voluntary and was it knowing and intelligent.® “An accused’s confession will not be suppressed
for involuntariness absent ‘coercive police activity.”*® Likewise, an Accused’s waiver can be
knowing and intelligent, and therefore admissible, even if the suspect does not “know and
understand every possible consequence of a waiver of the Fifth Amendment privilege.”*!

An individual must be provided a frame of reference for the impending interrogation by

being told generally about all known offenses. “It is not necessary to spell out the details . . . with

35 United States v. Bubonics, 45 M.T. 93, 95 (C.A.AF. 1996).

3 Schneckloth v. Bustamonte, 412 U.8, 218 (U.S.).

¥ Id. See also Fare v, Michael C., 442 U.8. 707, 725 (U.S. 1979).

38 United States v. Henderson, 52 M.1. 14 at 18 (C.A.A.F. 1999). See also United States v. Washington, 46 M.1. 477
(C.AAF, 1997),

3 United States v. Mott, 72 M 1. 319,330 (C.A.AF,, 2012

0 1d at 445.

4 Colorado v. Spring, 479 U.S. 564, 574 (1987). Appellate Exhibit _ xxy¥
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technical nicety.”** If an Accused is suspected of several offenses, warnings only pertaining to

one offense is sufficient if the other offense(s) are implicitly tied to the warned offense.*’
Whether the stated warning sufficiently provided notice of the accusation is tested on the basis of
the totality of the circumstances.**
Under Mil. R. Evid. 305(b)(2), action that triggers the requirement for Article 31 (or

Miranda) warnings includes “any formal or informal questioning in which an incriminating
response either is sought or is a reasonable consequence of such questioning.” This includes
direct questioning or action that amounts to the functional equivalent of questioning, and is
evaluated based on an objective test from the perspective of a reasonable police
officer/investigator. Generally, casual conversation and banter between an Accused and law
enforcement is not considered interrogation.*> Additionally, there exists a “routine booking
exception” to the Miranda requirements that allows law enforcement to question a subject to
custodial interrogation about police administrative matters.*
The 5th Amendment Miranda Right to Counsel

When a subject has invoked his right to counsel in response to a Miranda warning, a valid
waiver of that right cannot be established by showing only that he responded to further police-

initiated custodial interrogation, even if he has been advised of his rights. “Having expressed his

desire to deal with the police only through counsel, the subject is not subject to further

2 United States v. Quintana, 5 M.J. 484 (C.M.A. 1978) (Informing the accused that he was suspected of larceny of
ship’s store funds was held sufficient to cover wrongful appropriation of store funds during an earlier period.) See
also United States v, Rogers, 47 M.J. 135 (C.A.AF. 1997) (informing of “sexual assault” of one victim held
sufficient to orient the accused to the oftense of rape of a separate victim that occurred 4 years earlier).

4 See United States v. Kelley, 48 M.1. 677 (A. Ct. Crim, App. 1998).

4 See, e.g. United States v. Erie, 29 M.J. 1008 (A.C.M.R. 1990); United States v. Pipkin, 58 M.J. 358 (C.A.A.F.
2003)

4 See United States v. Guron, 37 M.J. 942 (A.F.CM.R. 1993); c.f. United States v. Byers, 26 M.J. 132 (C.M.A.
1988}(holding that a twenty minute pre warning lecture from the agent where the agent elicited incriminating
statement was interrogation.)

4 Pepnsylvania v. Munoz, 496 U.S. 582 (1990).
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interrogation . . . until counsel has been made available to him, unless the accused himself
initiates further communication, exchanges, or conversations with the police.”*” Once a suspect
initially waives his Miranda rights and agrees to submit to custodial interrogation without the
assistance of counsel, only an unambiguous request for counsel will trigger the Edwards
requirements.*®

4. Analysis.

The Initial Conversation

To begim, the Government concedes that the Accused’s interrogation was “custodial
interrogation” within the meaning of Miranda. However, NCIS’s initial conversation with the
Accused was part of the “routine booking exception” contemplated by Munoz.** NCIS only
gathered biographical data such as name, rank, height, weight, address, and emergency contact
information. None of these questions were likely to elicit an incriminating response. Further, the
casual conversation NCIS had with the excused was a classic "preface conversation™ that was
thoroughly discussed in the Guron case. In that case, the Appellant alleged that law enforcement
“relaxed” him and argued that if they had wamed him earlier he would have requested counset.>®
The A.F.C.M.R. expressly rejected this argument, stating “[W]e decline to create a rule that the
first words out of the mouth of an interviewer must be a rights advisement.”! This case is no

different, the conversation between NCIS and the Accused was friendly, cordial, and had nothing

to do with the allegations or the evidence.

# Edwards v. Arizona, 451 U.S. 477 (1981); see aiso United States v. Harris, 19 M.I. 331 (C.M.A. 1985) (Edwards
applies to military interrogations).

# See United States v. Davis, 36 M.J. 337 (C.MLA. 1993), aff'd, 512 U.S. 452 (1994)(holding the statement “maybe
I should talk to a lawyer” did not unequivocally invoke the 5th Amendment right to counsel.)

4 Munoz, 496 U.S, 582

3¢ United States v, Guron, 37 M.J. 942, 945 (A.F.CM.R. 1993)

3! Id. at 946 (Note, the Guron Court distinguished the facts of their case from the Byrd case where the agents
commented on the evidence and intimidated the Accused).

Appeliate Exhibit xx Y
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The Accused’s Backeround

The Accused in this case is a highly educated and successful Marine Corps officer. The
Accused scored in the 97th percentile on the AFQT and had remarkably high individual scores.
The Accused successfully passed the physically and emotionally demanding Officer Candidate’s
School, the intellectually demanding Basic School, and the extremely intellectually demanding
Basic Communication Officer’s Course. The evidence shows the Accused is a very smart man
who is clearly capable of processing and understanding large amounts of varied information. The
Accused’s intelligence and background weighs in favor of voluntariness.

The Meeting with L+Co! |

It is standard operating procedure that any time a service-member is sought for questioning

by NCIS, NCIS contacts the command and relies on the command to get the service-member to
NCIS. LtCoI- as the Accused’s superior officer, took it upon himself to orient the
Accused top what was going on. Just as a First Sergeant would for an enlisted Marine. LtCol
-nade no attempt to intimidate the Accused or make him think he Aad to talk to NCIS.
LtCol-merely sought to quell the Accused’s nerves and let him know that all NCIS
wanted to do was ask him some questions. This encounter is completely reasonable and routine
in the context of military interrogations. Contrary to Defense’s assertions, LtCol_was
not required to administer the Accused his Article 31b rights before this meeting as LtCol
-did not ask any questions which might tend to elicit an incriminating response.
Nonetheless, this meeting could play a factor in determining whether the Accused’s statements
were made voluntarily.
The case of United States v. Oakley, is illustrative of how “admonishments to cooperate” are
viewed in the context of voluntariness. In that case, civilian law enforcement was investigating

Appellate Exhibit _xx1v
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Appellant for civilian fraud offenses.®? Stanley, an Army NCO, was assigned as a “liason”
between civilian and Army law enforcement.> Stanley and a civilian officer went to Appellant’s
house to question him.** The civilian verbally mirandized appellant and Stanley told Appellant
something to the effect of “it would be better in the long run if you cooperate with the civilian
police.”> Stanley went on to say that if Appellant cooperated the courts might be more lenient. >
Finally, back at the station, Stanley told Appellant “"You need to really cooperate. I'm your
military liaison; I'm the go-between between you and the military. If you cooperate and
everything down here, everything will be okay at work and you'll be just fine."*’ The Qakley
Court found that those statements were admonishments from a military superior that were
unaccompanied by Article 31b rights.’® However, the Court found that these statements did not
compel the Appellant in violation of Article 31b.> The Court explained, ““[T]hete is no hint that
Stanley's advice to cooperate was meant to deceive Oakley or in any way trick him into a more
malleable state.”®

The facts of this case are even less persuasive for the Defense than those in Qakley. In this
case, per standard operating procedure, LtCol- briefly spoke to the Accused to orient
him to what was going on. LtCoi-simply told the Accused that NCIS wanted to talk to
him. Even if, in the light most favorable to Defense, LtCoI- did say “don’t squirrel
around” it would still not be enough under the totality of the circumstances to conclude that the

Accused’s will was overborne.

2 United States v. Oakley, 33 M.J. 27, 28-29 (C.A.AF. 1991).

1

54 Id

% 1d,

% 1d,

57 1d,

 1d. a1 32.

 1d, s
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For these reasons, this meeting should be considered but it is not at all dispositive of whether
the Accused’s statements were involuntary.

The Accused’s behavior during the Interrogation

The Accused’s demeanor and attempt to lie about the pen camera are factors to be considered
in determining whether his statements were voluntary. First, the Accused was engaged, attentive,
and active for the entirety of the interrogation. The Accused also attempted to hide his culpability
by coming up with the fake story about the pen camera. As held in the United States v.
Henderson case, an Accused’s attempt to “couch” their admissions in an exculpatory story is a
factor that weighs in favor of voluntariness.®!

Further, the Accused actually did unequivocally invoke his right to counsel to end the
interrogation after requesting to review his rights waiver again. This shows that the Accused was
fully cognizant and aware of his rights and make to free and conscious decisions: (1) to talk to
NCIS when he determined it was in his best interest; and (2) to request to speak to a lawyer when
he no longer felt comfortable. If the Accused was able to invoke his rights at the end of the
interrogation what could possibly suggest he was unable to at any earlier point in time? These

factors weigh heavily in favor of voluntariness.

The “do vou think I should get a lawver” Comment

The law is very clear that there is a difference between an equivocal and unequivocal request
for counsel. The Accused understood this as well considering he did make an unequivocal

request at the end of the interrogation. In United States v. Davis, the Appellant stated to NCIS

8 United States v. Henderson, 52 M.J. 14, 18 (C.A.AF. 1999)(Citing United States v. Washington, 46 M 1. 477, 482
(1997)

Appellate Exhibit _x 3
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“Maybe I should talk to a lawyer.”®* CMA ruled that this comment was ambiguous and failed to
invoke the 5th Amendment right to counsel. %

Here, the Accused asked SA-‘do you think I should get a lawyer.” That is not an
unequivocal request for counsel. It was ambiguous and SA-Iariﬁed to the Accused that it
was his choice alone. SA-than asked the Accused again if the Accused wanted to talk to
NCIS and the Accused said “sure.” Additionally, we know that the Accused was capable of
making an unequivocal request, and NCIS would honor and unequivocal request, because it
happened later in the interview.

The evidence shows that at the earlier point the Accused did not invoke his right to counsel
and the statements should not be suppressed for that reason.

The Totality of the Circumstances

In sum, Defense argues that because of the meeting with LtCol-and NCIS
attempting to minimize the seriousness of the situation, the Accused’s statements were
mvoluntary. All in all the factors that should be considered are as follows: (1) the Accused
intelligence, education, family background, and military experience; (2} the Accused’s reading,
acknowledgement, and waiver of his rights; (3) the Accused’s attempt to “couch” his admissions;
(4) the short length of the interrogation; (5) NCIS’s friendly and understanding demeanor; {6)
numerous breaks and offers for food and water; (7) the complete lack of threats, abuse, harm, or
deprivation of necessities; and (8) the Accused’s unequivocal request for counsel at the end of
the interrogation. All of these factors show that the Accused’s will was not overborne and his

decision to speak to NCIS was made freely and knowingly.

82 United States v. Davis, 36 M.J. 337 (C.M.A. 1993), aff'd, 512 U.S. 452 (1994).
B
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Finally, the case of United States v. Freeman provides useful guidance on just how far law
enforcement officer can push the limits of an interrogation while still keeping it voluntary. In that
case the Accused alleged that his confession was obtained by the interrogators’ use of coercion,
unlawful influence, or unlawful inducement based on the length of the polygraph and subsequent
interrogation, and the use of “lies, threats, and promises.”%* CAAF found the accused’s
confession voluntary even where (1) the interrogation lasted “almost ten hours,” (2) the accused
did not eat, and (3) interrogators told the accused that they would tell the accused’s commander
whether or not he cooperated.®

The Freeman interrogators went beyond simply informing the Accused that they would tell
his command, they also told the Accused that: (a) they had fingerprint evidence contradicting his
statements, which was not true, (b) the sooner they completed the interrogation, the sooner the
accused “could get on with his life,” (c) they would turn the accused over to civilian authorities if
he did not cooperate, (d) civilian punishment would be harsher, and (e) he would be sent to jail
for a long time if he did not cooperate.® Despite these potential influences, the Court found the
statement to be voluntary.

In finding the statement voluntary, the Court emphasized that the accused “was neither
physically abused nor threatened with such abuse,” that he was offered and/or had several breaks
throughout the ten hours, and the accused prepared the written statement himself.®” The Court

further found that the characteristics of the accused favored a finding of voluntariness because he

8 Freeman, 65 M.J, at 454,
5 Id. at 454-56.
6 Id. at 454-56.

57 1d. at 457. Appellate Exhibit X0
Page % of s

13



C C

“was a twenty-three-year-old E-4” when he was questioned and he was advised of and waived
his Article 31 (b) rights, among others.®
The circumstances surrounding the Accused’s statement here are much less onerous to those

in Freeman. Under a totality of the circumstances, and by a preponderance of the evidence, the
Government has proven that the Accused’s statements were made freely, knowingly, and
intelligently. The Accused's statement were the product of an essentially free and unconstrained
choice by its maker and the Accused's will was never overborne.
5. Evidence. In support of its motion, the Government offers the following:

Enclosure 1: The Accused’s TBIR

Enclosure 2: The Accused’s Commissioning Contract

Enclosure 3: The Accused’s TBTR

Enclosure 4: The Accused’s CHRO

Enclosure 5: The Accused’s Interrogation (previously provided as Enclosure 7 in the
Government MIL — M.R.E. 404(b)).

Enclosure 6: The Accused’s Signed Article 31b Waiver.

The Government also intends to call LtCol _in support of its motion.

0. Relief Requested. The Government respectfully requests that this Court DENY the Defense

motion.

7. Burden of Prof. The Govemnment bears the burden of proof by a preponderance of the

evidence.

8. Oral Argument. The Government respectfully requests oral argument.

K.D.CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel

8 Id. at 454.
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Certificate of Service

I hereby attest that a copy of the foregoing response was served on the Court and opposing
counsel via the WJC SharePoint on 23 June 2022.

K.D. CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel
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UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

U NITED STATES GOVERNMENT MO TION FOR
MINOR CHANGES TO CHARGE
V. SHEET
CHRISTOPHEER F. PAT"TERSON
FIRST LIEUT ENANT

U. 5. MARINEE CORPS

25 July 2022

Nt St St St St et St et St

1. Nature of Motion. Puarsuant to Rule for Courts-Martial (R.C.M.) 603, the

Go~vemment resspectfully mrequests to make minor changes to the title of Additionaal Charge
I, Specificationss Three, Four, Five, Six, Seven, Eight, and Nine of Additional Ch_arge I,
andl the typograaphical errors in the Sole Specification of Additional Charge 11.
2. Facts.
a. Additio-nal Charges I on the Additional Charge Sheet should contain a ronman numeras] “I”
in the ti tle. Encl 1~
b. The Ad ditional Chharge Sheet is missing the middle initial of each named victim in
Specifications three through nine of Additional Charge 1. Encl 1.
¢. The Sole Specification of Additional Charge 11 contains two typographicaal errors, ina that
the two uses of the word “gentlemen” should instead say “gentleman.” Emncl 1.
3. Law.
“Aftesr arraignnment the military judge may, upon motion, permit minor- changes im
the charges and specifications at any time before findings are announced if no substantial
right of the auccused is prejudiced.” R.C.M. 603(c). “Minor changes in charges and

specificationss are any esxcept those which add a party, offenses, or substantial mmatter not

Appelliate Ex hibit LXK
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faiirly included in those preeviously preferred, or which are likely to mislead the saccused as to
the offenses clmarged.” R.«C.M. 603(a).
4. Amalvysis.
Here, no party, offermse, or substantial matter is added to that which was
prevmously preferred, and at no point has Defense been misled regarding the substaance of
the c-harged offerises. Defermse has been provided notice of the names of each victtim in
the Charge Shee€s. Adding t-he middle initial of the victims will serve to make the charge
shee® more unifo-rm, more easily readable, and would decrease the risk of confusion for
the mnembers. De=fense has a“lso been put on sufficient notice as to the specific chamrges
allegzed in this cacse, and cormrecting the other typographical errors would not be
substantial nor wrould Defermse be misled.
5. Ewidence. In support of ifts motion, the Government offers the following:
Enclosures 1: First L.ieutenant Patterson Additional Charge Sheet dtd 28 Axpril 2022.

6. Reelief Requested. The G-overnment respectfully requests that the Military Judge permit

the f~ollowing mimor changess to the Charge sheet:
a) Additionaal Charge [= “Additional Charge” = “Additional Charge 1”
) Specification 3 of Aedditional Charge I: -9-
) Specification 4 of Aedditional Charge I:-—)-/ -) -
d) Specification 5 of Aedditional Charge I: -9 -
e) Specification 6 of Aedditional Charge I: -9 -
£) Specification 7 of Aedditional Charge I: ‘-and -9 -
g2) Specification 8 of A«dditional Charge I:- 9-
) Specification 9 of A-dditional Charge I: -9-

i) Sole Spexcification o—f Additional Charge II: “Gentlemen” = “Gentleman™

Appezllate Exhi bit _ =
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J}  Sole Speecification of _Additional Charge 1I: “Gentlemen” -> “Gentleman”

7. Bue-den of P roof. As the rmoving party, the Government bears the burden of proof on the

factua 1issues ceontained in thds motion by a preponderance of the evidence.

8. Oral Argunment. If the Defense opposes this motion, then the Government respectfully

P.E FL!!ING

Captain, U.S. Marine Corps

requessts oral ar-gument on the matter.

Trial Counsel
3 Appeliate E-xhibit ___ %#x
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Opposing Partv Response

Defense Counsel doess not oppose the above motion and does not request oral amgument.

Date: 25 Jualy 2022 K. M. COURTNEY
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Defense Counsel

s skok ook she skosk st skl ks sk ok kol ok skok skl skl sie 3kl sk ksl ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk skl sk she sk sk she sk sk sk s sk sk sk ke e Bl ok ok sk ol skosiokoleoskosk

Court Rul ing

The above request is mapproved/disaepproved/approved in part.

L D. A. POTEET
Lieutenant Colonel U.S. Marine C-orps
Military Judge
» Appesliate Exchibit __2K)
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WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAaVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITEED STATXES OF ATMERICA, DEFENSE R.C.M. 917 MO®TION F«OR A
FINDING OF NOT GUILT"Y ON A.LLL
Pla_intiff, CHARGES
V.

CHRISTOPHE R F. PAT"TERSON,
First Lmeutenant, U.S. Ma-rine Corps,

Acecused.

1. Relieff Requessted. The ggovernment has now closed its case-in-chief, and, therefore, the
defense reespectfullly moves the Court pursuant to Rules for Courts-Martial (‘R.@.M.”), Rule 917,
to dismisss the Original Charge and Additional Charge I, both of which allege violations ef Article
1 20c, on grounds there is arm absence of evidence submitted at trial by the gover-nment esstablishing
an elememt of the offense, t wit: Occurrence of the conduct under circumstancess in whiich the
alleged vmctim hadl a reasonaeble expectation of privacy. The defense also respec=tfully moves the
Court pumsuant tor R.C.M. 9 17, to dismiss Additional Charge II, which alleges a_ violatiom of
Article 133, condmict unbecoming an officer, on grounds there is also absence off evidence
Concerniryg the ‘reasonable expectation of privacy,” element, which is also requi—red to be proved
wander sin-ce the gesneral offemse charged is the same as a specific offense set fort h in the @riginal
Charge amd Addit ional Char—ge I and, therefore, the elements required to be prowed are the same
as for those two other charg=es which allege specific offenses, with the additionaal requireement that
the act orr omissio=n constitutte conduct unbecoming an officer and gentleman.

2. Statemment of the Case. The accused, 1stLt Christopher Patterson, USMC, (hereinafter “Lt
Pattersom”), is faccing two clnarges of violating the Uniform Code of Military Jusstice (‘U€CMJ’),
Article 120¢, indescent recor-ding, based upon sixteen (16) specifications, and ome charges based
wpon a simgle speccification o™f violating the UCM)J, Article 133, conduct unbecomming an -officer.

It Patter=son has entered a pslea of ‘not guilty,” to all charges and specifications.

APPELLATE EXHIBIT ¥ -2\ (
PAGE |\ OF | =




Specificationss 1 and 3 under the Original Charge allege indecent recordingg by Lt Patterson
of oommatess in a remted hotase they all occupied together off-base in Oceanside. Specifiecations
2,4, 5,6, arad 7, und er the Oeriginal Charge allege indecent recording by Lt Patterson of v-isitors to
the: men’s lo-cker room at the Paige Field House gymnasium aboard Camp Pendle=ton. Thee
recording in this instaance wass accomplished by Lt Patterson’s cell phone. The ce=ll phone was set
by Lt Pattersson to re«cord ancl was then placed in the open in an area of the lockemr room where
gyrm patrons congreggated nuede. 1t was not placed within a private stall. Additiomnal Charsse 1,
spescificatiorm 1, allegess indecent recording by Lt Patterson of visitors to a men’s leocker rosom
aboard Marzne Corps Base (uantico, Virginia. The recording in this instance wass similar-ly
accomplishe=d by Lt Pattersom’s cell phone and was likewise set to record when Ieft in the open in
the: changing area of the lock er room where Officer Candidate School (‘OCS’) candidates
corgregated nude afiter showering. The cell phone was not placed within a priva_te stall.

Addmtional Chharge 1 alleges conduct unbecoming an officer in violation osf UCMJ , Article
133. This chharge is £actually and fundamentally based on the same conduct allegesd in all #he other
charges and specifications, amd the supporting specification alleges the conduct o-ccurred <‘in a
pulblic restrevom.” Aas compared to all the other specifications alleged, this specifification,
confrariwises, makes mo ment=ion of the conduct occurring “under circumstances imn which [ the
alleged victiom] had a reasonamble expectation of privacy.”

3. R.CM. Rule 917 Motior for a Finding of ‘Not Guilty.” The Manual for Co=urts-Mamrtial
(219 ed.) perovides &t Rule @17, in part, as follows:
“(a) Ima general. The military judge, on motion by the
accus-ed or su a sponte, shall enter a finding of not guilty of one or
more offenses charged at any time after the evidence on either sidse
is clossed but porior to entry of judgment if the evidence is
insufificient t«o sustain a conviction of the offense affected.

[Emp-hasis adeded.]

Ly
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(b) Form of™ motion. The motion shall specifically indicate wherein

thes evidence is insufficient.

(¢) Proceduwe. Before ruling on a motion for a finding of not guilty=,

wheether ma«de by counsel or sua sponte, the military judge shall

giv-e each paurty an opportunity to be heard on the matter.

(d)» Standard. A motion for a finding of not guilty shall be granted

onlly in the absence of some evidence which, together with all

reamsonable imferences and applicable presumptions, could

reamsonably tend to establish every essential element of an offense

charged. Thee evidence shall be viewed in the light most favorable t-o

the= prosecuttion, without an evaluation of the credibility of

wittnesses.

4. Discrassion:

a . Introdwmuction: OOh what a tangled web we weave when a clear statute we do mot
conceives. Fundarmentally, the instant motion depends on the appropriate interprestation of thue
phrase: ““under circumstances in which that other person, [i.e., the alleged victim], has a
reasonatele expect-ation of privacy.” It is respectfully submitted that reviewing cowirts have
suggeste-d four segparate ways to interpret the phrase to determine the meaning of ~this cruciall
pPhrase.

1. Plain ML eaning Approach. Courts which apply a textualist, omr strict
construc tionist ap=proach to statutory interpretation, simply read the words of a stzatute accor-ding
t o their plain meaming. If the plain meaning is not readily clear, then these courts declare thes
statute v-oid for vagueness. The Supreme Court’s opening passage in the case of U. S. v. Daavis
(C2019)5-88U.S. ;139 S. Ct. 2319;204 L. Ed. 2d 757, represents a recent, ex-cellent exa-mple
of this apoproach. Justice GGorsuch delivered the opinion of the Court.

“In <our constitutional order, a vague law is no law at all.

Only the pe-ople’s elected representatives in Congress have the

po=wer to write new federal criminal laws. And when Congress




exercmses that power, it has to write statutes that give ordinary
peoplee fair wa ming about what the law demands of them. Vague
laws transgresss both of those constitutional requirements. They
hand ©ff the lesgislature’s responsibility for defining criminal
behav-ior to umelected prosecutors and judges, and they leave
people with no sure way to know what consequences will attach to
their conduct. When Congress passes a vague law, the role of
courtss under our Constitution is not to fashion a new, clearer law to
take its place, but to treat the law as a nullity and invite Congress to
try agcain.”

In thme instant case, thes defense does not consider the language of Article 1 20c, and , in
particular, thhe “under circumsstances in which that other person has a reasonable expectatio-n of
priv-acy’ phr-ase, vaguae. The edefense endorses an interpretation of the statute whiech is based upon
the «clear, or-dinary meeaning o f'the words, despite the fact that the statute includes two altemrnative
defimitions »f the phrase at Amticle 120c(d). The statute reads:

(d) DEFINITEONS.—In this section:

& ES * & *
(3) REEASON.ABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY. — The termm
“undest circunmstances in which that other person has a reasonable
expectation off privacy” means— (A) circumstances in which a
reasomable pemrson would believe that he or she could disrobe in
privacy, witheut being concerned that an image of a private area o
the person wars being captured; or (B) circumstances in which a
reasomable pemrson would believe that a private area of the person
would not be ~visible to the public.

Based upon the facts of the instant case, it seems we are clearly dealing orly with t he (A)
defiinition. -Applicati<on of the (B) definition appears inappropriate because surely the persons

recorded in this case knew fumll well that while showering and changing in the lockzer room their
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priv-ate areams were obviously exposed to multiple fellow-gymnasium patrons.

Itis respectfimlly submitted that application of the (A) definition is appropri ate, prowided
one adopts the two-sstep processs prescribed by the definition in light of the comma which
delimeates thhe two se-parate clauses. Working backwards, it appears established to a degreee that
the second =step of thee analysis is satisfied, at least for purposes of opposing this R_C.M. 91 7
motion. Thme governmment’s winesses testified that they changed in the locker roorm “withasut
beirag concesrned that animage of a private area of the person was being captured.™

On sthe other hand, it apopears that for the first step of the two-step process thereis a
comaplete abosence of proof. This is because the first step requires a determination ~that the zarea in
question where the rescording Occurred presented “circumstances in which a reasormable person
wouald belie=ve that he or she could disrobe in privacy.” To a man, every government witnesss has
testafied, so me begru dgingly, s<ome willingly, that the circumstances were not private, but, instead
were public=. A numbber of the government’s witnesses specifically characterized the locker room
as a “public=" facility.

For example, government witness SSgt -estiﬁed essentially that one c=ould notc
control hover many people were walking back and forth in the locker room, since it- was a “gpublic
place.”

Sgt -t-estiﬁed thaat *“expected to be seen because this is a public places.”

Cap-tain- testified, that “if I can’t shower alone, I use [the locker roomm], a pubelic
facility.”

Mr. -testjﬁed that khe was “obviously, not [changing] in private, becausse there are

other peoplie there.”

Cap-tain-t:estiﬁed thmat “people going into a locker room are consenting to be se=en
nak ed.”

GySgt- testified thmat it was “Okay for people in the shower to see hime naked.”™

Thiss is a repr-esentatives sample of the evidence establishing the locker was not privaate, but
instead wass public. Hn so doin_g, the government’s witnesses refuted the first step -in the

determinati-on that thme recordimg was under “circumstances in which a reasonable gperson wwould
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believe thathe or she could disrobe in privacy.” None of the government’s witmesses testified to
beslieving t hey cowmld disrobe inprivacy. The locker room is a public place; just zas the gowernment
alleges in Additiomal Charge I

In respect to specifications | and 3 under the Original Charge, two witn-esses test-ified that
thaey lived as roommmates witk Lt Patterson in a rented house they all occupied tevgether o—ff-base in
Orceanside: and that there wemre no rules for wearing clothes in the residence and , that as a
consequemmce, theys often mowed about the interior of the home in the nude. Vidleos admisted into
ewidence o»n speciffications 1 and 3 show the roommates having been outside their rooms nude or
clad only ima toweel.

2. Customar-y Meanings of Terms of Art are Established an d Incorp orated
imto Statumtes to EXxpress W hat They Customarily Mean. Another approach which co-urts take
im interpreting sta€utes whicla contain terms of art, such as an iconic legal phrase in the la~w, is to
apply the statutorsy interpretation used elsewhere in the law. The phrase “reasomable exp=ectation
o privacy.” is a term of art Imaving a particular meaning in the field of law. Adrmittedly, t he
owerwhelmning ma jority of caeses grappling with the phrase concern 4™ Amendmeent issues: relative
to» searche s and sesizures in ameas where the defendant argued he had a ‘reasonalble expectation of
pxivacy’ i the aresa searched . Nonetheless, this does not mean the phrase shoulld have a ~wholly
dmfferent nneaning in other comntexts, although some courts disagree.

Theere is neo doubt thaat context matters in determining the appropriate inaterpretati-on of a
teerm of ar&. Obvieusly, the phrase ‘play ball,” has a different meaning when spasken by a mafia
beoss and thhan when it is yelled by an honored fan at the commencement of a basseball garme. But
imm this case, the plrase ‘reasonable expectation of privacy’ is being used in the Begal conteext.
PxresumabEy Congwess intenti-onally adopted the phrase from 4™ Amendment caszes to be wtmsed in
emacting Article 1 20c¢ specifi cally because the phrase had a long and storied histtory and ists
nacaning vwas estalblished andl clear. Use of the phrase in the Article 120c conte=xt of
“circumstances in which that other person has a reasonable expectation of privaacy” requiires the
governmemt prove that unde the circumstances the alleged victim had a reason_able expe-ctation off

pwivacy. I mthis case, as noted about, the government’s witnesses testified that —they did rot have
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an exgoectation of privacy, mweasonable o1 otherwise, because the locker rooms wrere not pesrivate,
but, imstead, wesre public faacilities.

It shoul.d be noted #that although the defense does not consider use of thoe ‘reason.able
expectation of gorivacy’ clamuse Article 1 20c ambiguous, others might, including this Cour-t, might.
In thaat case, thes rules of staatutory construction regarding a criminal statute requiire that aany
ambigzuity be re=solve in fav=or of the deffendant. For example, the U.S. Army Court of Ceriminal
Appe als consid ered a strikmngly similar case in U.S. v. Rice, 71 M.J. 719, (ARMTY 2010(678)
(20122). During the guilty gplea providency inquiry, the accused stated: “I obser—ved and dligitally
recoreded femalee personnel in various states of undress while they were conductting hygiesne tasks
in thes female skhower trailemr.” 71 M.J. at 721. In finding the guilty plea improv-ident, thes court
consiedered ruless of statuto-ry constructaon as follows:

“Apeplication of certain fundamental principles of statuto-ry
constructiom also revealls this error. “Ordinarily, where a specific
[statutory] gprovision cosnflicts with a general one, the specific
governs.” I=dmond v. UFnited States, 520 U.S. 651, 657, 117 S.CCt.
1573, 137 EL.Ed.2d 917 (1997) (citation omitted). Here, then, time
specific prosvisions addressing voyeurism under the 2007 versior of
Article 120&(t)(12), UCMI, define the limits of that statute's reaczh
over that sort of peepin.g behavior. See /d. In addition,
‘ambiguityr concerningz the ambit of criminal statutes should be
resolved im favor of lemity.’ ” Busic v. United States, 446 U.S.

398, 406, 1 00 S.Ct. 1747, 64 L.Ed.2d 381 (1980) (citations
omitted). T herefore, if aany ambiguity exists, the 2007 version o
Article 120+(k), UCMJ, mecessarily considered in conjunction wi th
Article 120 (t)(12), UCI™M]J, limits criminal liability under that art=icle
for voyeurizsm to those specific situations listed. See Id. ” [Emphasis

added.]
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It is re:spectfullly submitte«d that if this Court considers Article 120c, and/er the atteendant
Article 120¢ diefinitioms or the phurase ambiguous, the Court is obliged to interpret them w-ith
lenit y in favor of Lt P atterson.

3. Re=asonablene=ss in the Law is Tested by an Objective Stamdard Ra ther
thara by a Un-ique Suabjective Sstandard According to Each Individual Victimm’s Partiicular
Senssibilities. A thirdl approach to determining the true intent of a statute and how it is to be
applied, looks to use of the word. ‘reasonable’ within the statute. Use of the womd ‘reasorable’ in
the text of Artzicle 120c requires &he court apply an objective test to determine w-hether, g@ven the
circtamstances of the mrecording o #ffense, the person recorded could have harborec a reasormable
expectation off privacsy, regardlesss of what the witnesses testified to respecting thmeir subjective
assessments o—f privac-y.

Based upon thhe objective standard established by Article 120¢ for assess@mng whethuer the
partEcular circmumstaneces created areasonable expectation of privacy, there is a ¢ omplete @bsence
in thee governmment’s case-in-chief of evidence tending to prove the average reaseonable
gymenasium paatron co-uld reasonacbly harbor a reasonable expectation of privacy while nakeed or
part®ally clothesd in thee communal areas of two separate, public, locker rooms where the c-onduct
occuarred in this case.

The government attempted on multiple occasions to mix together two concepts ime redirect
quesstions to reshabilitaate witnessess regarding the two separate concepts of ‘priva cy” and
‘expwectations ~of beingz recorded ima locker room.” For example, “Did you expesct privacy from
bein g recordeed in the locker roorm?” The subjective answers of offended gym patrons to ~these
cros=sover que-stions aure considersed irrelevant if Article 120c¢ is interpreted to appoly an objiective
test of determ-ining ‘recasonable expectation of privacy.”

The fa cts of this case are virtually uncontested. Lt Patterson made a full confession as to
his conduct om 17 De=cember 2022(. Nonetheless, the government’s evidence lac-ks any preoof that
the mrecordingss in eitheer the lockesr rooms aboard Marine Corps Base Quantico o-r at the Paaige
Fieled House a"board Camp Pendleton took place under circumstances in which the averagee,

reas.«onable, lo=cker roeom patron wwould have harbored a reasonable expectation oef privacy .
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InUS. v. McCarrthy, (1993), 38 M.J. 398, 62 USLW 2449, the United States Ceourt of
Militamy Appeals wrote=
“A priva_te but conmmon area confers no legitimate expectatiom of
privacy. See Unite=d States v. Barrios—Morviera, 872 F.2d 12 (2d
Cir.) (no= expectation of privacy in common hallway of apartme=nt
complex_ even thow gh front door was locked), cert. denied, 493
U.S. 953, 110S.C&. 364, 107 L.Ed.2d 350 (1989). Communal
living sp-=aces confer no reasonable expectation of privacy. See
People v=. NalbandZan, 188 A.D.2d 328, 590 N.Y.S.2d 885 (1992)
(no expe=ctation of privacy for items on bed in communal sleeping
area in nmen's sheltesr). Finally, a squatter living in a natural caves on
federal laand has no reasonable expectation of privacy. United ST tates
v. Ruckman, 806 F.2d 1471 (10th Cir.1986).”
¥k % *  *
“The Sugpreme Couart's contextual analysis of the First Amendnment
in Parke=r v. Levy, =supra, was applied to the Fourth Amendmemt by
the Distrrict of Cohambia Circuit in Committee for GI Rights v.
Callaway, 518 F.2«d 466, 477 (1975), which observed, “[t]he
‘expectaction of priwvacy’ . . . is different in the military than it is in
civilian Life. . . . The soldier cannot reasonably expect the Aarmy
barrackss to be a samctuary like his civilian home.” See also Peo=ple
v. Nalbazndian, 188 A.D.2d at 330, 590 N.Y.S.2d at 887.
(Defend=ant's quarteers here partook more of an Army barracks er a
gymna sium loc ker room than a private hotel suite....”). Cf.
Kauffmean v. Secre-tary of the Air Force, 415 F.2d 991, 997 n. &6
(D.C.Cimr.1969). [Emphasis added.] 38 M.J. 401.
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"The McCarthy court went on to write:

“«0Of coursse, the phwwsical characteristics of the barracks room are no t
i1 themse=1ves determinative. They undoubtedly affect the
o=ccupant™s subjecti=ve expectation of privacy, leaving the objective,

i. e, “reassonable,” expectation of privacy to be otherwise
dletermined.” 38 M1.J. 403.

By empleying the word “reasonable” in the text of Article 120c, the test reaquired to Eoe
applied is not whhether thae particul-ar victim had a subjective expectation of privacy-, but whet-her
the circmamstances object ively gave rise to a reasonable expectation of privacy. In ®his case, £he
two gyrmnasium locker repoms in q-uestion were not private hotel suites. The patroms to the
gymnas®Eum lock er roomss knew thaat they would be viewed naked or partially clotheed by othesr
nude or partially= clothed patrons v=hile they were in the locker room; whether dres=sing,
disrobirmg, or showering. The recordings in this case occurred in a public locker ramom and time
governrment con-cedes th is point ime its specification under Additional Charge I, wimere it allegzed
Lt Pattesrson “se=t up an &ctivated recording device in a public restroom, . . .” [Emphasis
added.]

4. To Completely- Disregard the Language of the Statute to Emsure a
Convication is S-ustainead: One last approach adopted by some military, appellates courts is
seeming=ly to sinmply disreegard the express language of a statute, ignore the grammaar and
punctuastion of the statutce, and arr-ive at an interpretation which upholds the conviction at all.
cost. T he defensse does mot endorsse this fourth approach to statutory interpretatiom. The de=fense
believess that wosrds matt-er, gramnmar matters, punctuation matters, the testimony Of witnesses
matters_, and the- pleadingzs of the ggovernment matter, despite the resulting outcomee. Howew=er,
some courts appear to d-sagree.

_For exarmple, thes United S tates Air Force Court of Criminal Appeals in U..5S. v.
Bessmeatnyy, Case No. LACM 39322 (2019) regarding an appeal from conviction in an Article

102¢ casse in an unpublisshed opinison wrote:
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“The Go vernment had the burden to prove Appellant
made re=cordings o® KG under circumstances in which she had a
reasona ble expecta tion of privacy. A person has a “reasonable
expecta-tion of priv-acy” when a reasonable person would believ-e (a)
she cou’ld disrobe im privacy without being concerned that an inmage
ofher p-rivate area was being captured; or (b) her private area
would mot be visibRe to the public. 10 U.S.C. § 920¢(d)(3).” AeCM
No. 39322, pages © and 10.

In this passage, the Air Foxrce Court misquotes the statute. The opiniom neglect s the
commna between the words “privacy” and “without.” Although it is the omissieon of a hmumble littHe
commmna, the o»mission, monetheless changes the meaning and application of the statute firom a two -
step Cest proc-ess to a o-ne step prorcess, and the mixture of the two tests into ome is contrary to th.e
expresss langueage of the actual statute Congress enacted.

The Aair Force @ourt further compounds the mistake by including a focetnote 14 . That
footmote read. s:

“14 Appellant, in Iwis second assignment of error, invites us to tmse
the Kat=test for determining whether a Government search anc
seizure 1is lawful urader the Fourth Amendment to the United St ates
Constitmition, U.S. CONST. amend. 1V, to determine whether &
person Bhas a reasomable expectation of privacy under Article 120c,
UCMI. See Katz v_ United States, 389 U.S. 347, 361 (1967)
(Harlan _, J., concurring) (concluding there “is a twofold
requirerment, first that a person have exhibited an actual (subjective)
expecta.tion of priveacy and, second, that the expectation be one= that

33

society is prepared. to recognize as ‘reasonable.’”’). However, wve
are not- at liberty to give new meaning to a term used in an
elemen-t of an offense beyond its clear, statutorily supplied

definitiion, and descline to do so now. [Emphasis added.] See-
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Zenerally United States v. Lee, 2017 CCA LEXIS 185, at *15-M6
«AF. Ct. &Crim. App. 17 Miar. 2017) (unpub. op.) (citation omitt ed)
«(rejecting application of FOurth Amendment doctrine to define
“Teasonab le expectation of privacy” in Article 120c, UCMJ,
ifferent firom its statutory™ definition), rev. denied, 76 M.J. 455
«{C.A.AF. 2017). Thus, we find no merit to this assignment of
<rror.”

The Court, whiles claiming it is “n ot at liberty to give new meaning toe a ternw used im
an element of =an offense beyond its clear, statutorily supplied definition, a nd decliine to deo
so mow,” has im fact dones exactly that by eomitting the comma as noted above, thhereby igenoring
the wrequirementt clearly e=pressed in the s&atute that a two-step process be used in a simmilar
fash ion to the approach im Katz v. United States, 389 U.S. 347, 361 (1967) wheere the court
esta blished a “a twofold mequirement, firs€ that a person have exhibited an actuaal (subjective)
expectation of gorivacy aned, second, that thhe expectation be one that society is psrepared to
reca» gnize as ‘reasonable. 7

Obvioussly, the de-fense respectfully requests the Court adopt anyone of “the first three
appxoaches set forth abowve in interpretings Article 120c¢ and not use the last appsroach. I fthe
requaest is grantted, the cosnclusion resultine g from adopting any of the first three approac-hes is thue
samee: There is an absencee of evidence est ablishing the element of ‘reasonable expectatison of
privacy.’

b. Gramting the Motion as to thme Original Charge and Additional ®Charge 1,
Mamdates Granting the= Motion as to Aadditional Charge II.

Additional Chargee 11, alleges a vieolation of Article 133, conduct unbeceoming am officer -
Althaough not pelead in the attendant specification, the government must also prove the “reasonalble
expesctation of grivacy,” element since thes general Article 133 offense charged i s based «on the
samee conduct aas the specsific offenses allesged in the Original Charge and Additieonal Charge 1.
Therefore, the <lements required to be preoved are the same as for those two othher charsges whicch

allegge specific ©ffenses, wvith the additionaal requirement that the act or omissior constitmute
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condwict unbescoming aan officer and gentleman. A complete absence of evidences in supprort of the
‘reasonable exxpectatiosn of privacy’ element requires Additional Charge Il be dismissed &s well as
the baalance o=f charges..

5. Rezlief Recguested. That the Original Charge, Additional Charge 1 and Addit=ional Charge 11 be
dismi ssed.

6. Bmurden opf Proof. En accordamce with R.C.M 917, the government has the bmurden of negating
the abbsence o=f any eviedence prowing the offense occurred “under circumstances= in which [the
allege victim “had] reassonable expectation of privacy.”

7. Oaral Argrament. T he defense requests oral argument.

Very respectfully,

J. W. Carver
Civilian Defense Counsel

I

I
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
On 18 August 2022, I caused this document to be served upon all counssel and tke court.
Dateed: 18 Autagust 20222 Very respectfully,

J. W. CARVER, Declarant
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UNNTED STATES MARINE CORPS
N AVY ANID MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
(ENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

UNI TEDS TATE S GOVERNMENT BENCH BR_IEF ON
ARTICLE 120c AND DEFE _NSE’S
V. R.C.M. 917 MOTION"
(INDECENT RECORDIT™NG)

CHRESTOPHEER F. PATTTERSOIN
FIRST™ LIEUT"ENANT
U.S. MARINE CORPS 17 August 2022

1. Nature of Motion:

The Governrment respectfully recguests that the Court deny Defense’s R.C.M. 917 rmotion, as the
Defense’s propossed interpmretation of  Article 120c¢ is contrary to the plain text of the statute and binding
precede=nt. As exsplained b-elow, the requirements of R.C.M. 917 have not been met be-cause the evidence
for eacha of the charges and specificattions is more than sufficient to sustain a convictiom.

2. Statememt of Facsts

A s the Def“ense concedes in its  motion, “[t]he facts of this case are virtually uncontested” because
“Lt Pat®erson ma_de a full confession as to his conduct on 17 December 2020.” Def. Mlot. at 7.
Specifically, 1stl_t Patterson recorded, without their consent, dozens of men in various- states of undress at=
his homae, the me=n’s lockem room at thhe Paige Field House gym on Camp Pendleton, ard a men’ s locker
room abboard Mamrine Corpss Base Quaantico, Virginia. Def. Mot. at 1-2. The gym recordings wesre
“accom plished by Lt Pattezrson’s [dewices,]” which “w[ere] set by Lt Patterson to record and . . - placed
... in amarea of —the locker- room whesre gym patrons congregated nude.” Id. A more #ulsome v-ersion of
the fact sis laid o=ut in the Charge Sheet,

3. Law andl Analysis

a_ The Standard for Defense’ss R.C.M. 917 Motion

“_A motion fora findling of not guilty shall be granted only in the absence of sommae evidence which,

Y
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together w=vith all reascnable infererces and applicable presumptions, could reasonablly tend to esstablish
every esseantial elememt of an offenmse charged. The evidence shall be viewed in the 1 ight most favorable
to the pro:secution, wi thout an eval=uation of the credibility of witnesses.” R.C.M. 91 7(d). Whesn
reviewings for legal suafficiency, thes appellate courts consider “whether, after viewings the evide-nce in the
light mosw#t favorable t o the prosecustion, any rational trier of fact could have found thee essentiall elements
of the crirme beyond @ reasonable dloubt.” United States v. Wilson, 76 M.J. 4, 6 (C.A .A.F.20177)
(emphasiss in original ") (citation om itted).

b. "The Text of Article 120¢

Art-icle 120c of ™ the UCMIJ cr-iminalizes three discrete actions—"indecent view ing,” “indeecent .

visual rec=ording,” and “indecent . _ . broadcasting.” 10 U.S.C. § 920c(a)(2). With reespect to *“ indecent

. visuall recording,”™ Article 120c= makes it a crime for “[a]ny person subject to this chapter™ =‘without
legal justmfication or Bawful author®zation™ to “knowingly photograph[], videotape[], film[], or record[] by~
any mearms the private area of anotlher person, without that other person’s consent aned under
circumstaances in whiech that other gperson has a reasonable expectation of privacy.” &ld. § 920c«(a)(2). The
UCMJ geoes on to deffine “circums®ances in which that other person has a reasonable expectatieon of
privacy” —to include “ecircumstance=s in which a reasonable person would believe that he or she «could
disrobe ir privacy, w ithout being concerned that an image of a private area of the pe=rson was Bbeing
captured.™ Id. § 920c(d)(3)(A).!

c. Military Ca=se Law

! Awt several poimts, the Defense suggests that this Court should consider Fourth Amensdment case law in
determinirg the meanirg of “reasonal>le expectation of privacy.” Def. Mot. at 6 (arguing that the phras-e should nots
have “a whholly differerat meaning™ in  the context of Article 120¢); id. (arguing that Congress “adopted 7the phrase
from the 42" Amendmemt cases”); id =t 78 (relying on a Fourth Amendment case, United SEates v. McC arthy, 38
M.J. 398 (C 1993), for thee proposition tBhat ““[a] private but common area confers no legitimate expectatiom of
privacy™). But as the [Defense later cooncedes, id. at 9—10, the military justice system has rejected that agpproach. Se-e
United Steates v. Bessmeertnyy, 2019 CCA LEXIS 255, at ¥16 n.14 (A.F.C.C.A. June 14, 2019) (“[W]e azre not at
liberty to sgive new meaaning to a term  used in an element of an offense beyond its clear, statuatorily-suppolied
definition ... .”); Uniteed States v. Lee,2017 CAA LEXIS 185, at *16 (A.F.C.C.A. March 141, 2017), re-v. denied, 7€
M.J. 455 CCA.AF.20717) (“We reject Appellant’s application of Fourth Amendment ‘reasomable expectation of
privacy’ dlloctrine as it &applies to Articcle 120c because the statutory language is clear and defTines that plarase as it
applies to this statute.” ).
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Because LArticle 1_20c crimimmalizes three distinct forms of indecent conduct (view=ing, recorcling, and
broadlcasting), the militaary appellaste courts have consistently interpreted Article 120c¢ teo mean thaat an
indivEdual may consent to having t-heir private areas viewed without consenting to havimng their pr-ivate
areas recorded or broad®cast. Morse to the point, the courts have emphasized that an inclividual maay
maintain his rezasonable expectatio=n of privacy in not having his private areas recorded_, even if by his
actioras he has forfeited This reasonaable expectation of privacy in not having his private zareas view—ed. See,
e.g., United Startes v. Sirmpson, 20220 CCA LEXIS 67, at ¥19, *21 (N.M.C.C.A. March 11, 2020)
(acceppting that while a wictim’s co=nsent to being viewed deprived her of a reasonable e=xpectatiom of
privacy in not baeing vie~wed, the faact that the victim “did not know her mother was recerding her private
areas™’ confirmed that thee victim “mmaintained her reasonable expectation of privacy fro-m being
recoraded”) (eme phasis i original); United States v. Lohr, 2020 CCA LEXIS 15 (NM.CC.C.A. Janwmary 17,
2020® (upholdimyg the cosnviction o=fa Sailor who surreptitiously recorded his sexual activity with a
prostittute wheres the pro:stitute had consented to the sexual activity but not its recordings); United SSiates v.
Rainezs, 2014 C CA LEXTIS 600, at *13 (N.M.C.C.A. August 21, 2014) (“[A]lthough all four femaale
victimns may ha~ve conse=nted to sexxual acts with the appellant, they all testified that themy were comnpletely
unaw are that theeir sexual activitiess with the appellant were being recorded and did not consent to their
naked bodies om their pamrticipation in sexual acts being recorded.”); id. (dismissing the argument ~that “by
agree ing to hav-e sex wisth him, [thee victims] implicitly agreed to the recording” as “patzently ridiculous”
becalase even “agreeing to have se—x with another does not remove all reasonable expec-tations of

privaecy™).

The Air EForce Co=urt of Crinminal Appeals’ (AFCCA’s) decision in United States v. Bessme=rinyy,
2019 CCA LEXIS 255 @A F.C.C.A. June 14, 2019) is particularly instructive. There, tThe Court uzpheld the
conviiction of am Airmam who secreetly recorded the intimate Skype video sessions he h-ad shared =with his

girlfrdend. The- accused argued thaat because his victim had consented and even invited! him to view her
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exposed p-rivate area.s while she pesrformed sexual acts, she had had no reasonable expeectation off privacy

whatsoevesr. Id. at * 16—17. The Court flatly rejected that argument:

A-ppellant[] .. .invites us o find that a person has no expectation of privacy, or loses

w hat privacsy she has, simgply by agreeing to expose her private area to anothemr. We
diisagree. A person who wwillingly shows her bare breasts, buttocks, and genitalia to an
inetimate parstner would nometheless have a reasonable expectation that her priwate area
w-as not undeer the watchfuml eye of a camera operated by her partner, or the pulblic. We
fimnd that [thes victim]’s testimony that she was unaware she was being recorde-d combine=d
with evidence of the privaste setting in which she exposed her private area to nzone other
thuan Appellaant did not undermine [the victim]’s expectation of privacy, much less one
held by a rezasonable person, and thus defeats this argument.

V-4

Notably, the Court found thaat the victim had a reasonable expectation of privacsy in not ha~ving her
private aresas recordeed even thougkn she had previously consented to having the accuse=d record heer private

areas:

A ppellant[] ... [also] inviites us to focus on the circumstances of recorded sexxual acts
w~hen [the vEctim] acknow=ledges she was aware of being recorded instead of t-he
ciircumstanc-es of the chargzed recordings when she asserts she was not. But thme term,
“winder circimmstances in vavhich” another person has a “reasonable expectations of privacs/”
dmrects the f=actfinder and #this court to look no further than circumstances whe=n each
recording was made.

14 at17.

The Defense aasserts that theste is insufficient evidence to convict the Accused o#f indecent recording
because ““the averagse reasonable g=ymnasium patron” could not have “reasonably hartwor[ed] a reasonable
expectation of priva=cy while nake-d or partially clothed in the communal areas of [the ] . . . publiec locker
rooms wimere the comduct occurrecd.” Def. Mot. at 7. But as the above case law demo-nstrates, that is
incorrect. Even assmiming arguer«do that the victims in this case lost all reasonable exxpectation of privacy
in not hawing their perivate parts v ewed (notwithstanding the fact that they chose to cihange and shower in
areas whesre their pr-ivate parts wosuld be hidden from the vast majority of the general public, including the

entirety o-fthe oppossite sex), there is overwhelming evidence that the victims still retazined a rea_sonable
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exprectation of  privacy im not having thei r private areas recorded. Every single one of ™ the particFpating
victims in this case—ev-en the ones that Fhave acknowledged they “expected™ or “consesnted” to e seen
nak<ed, Def. M -ot. at 5—has testified that they did not consent to the Accused recordin_g their pri=vate areass.

The Def"ense also places great emphasis on the fact that the Accused never placed a camer—a “withirm
a prxivate stall.™ Def. Maot. at 2. But nothing in Article 120c or its associated case law requires thhat an
accused invades his victi 1m’s privacy to thme greatest extent possible before he can be cosnvicted. Rather,
Article 120c reequires oraly that the accus<ed record the victim “under circumstances in  which tha#t other
per-son has a recasonable expectation of prrivacy.” 10 U.S.C. § 920c(a)(2) (emphasis acdded). Winatever
anmeount of privwacy can be reasonably expoected in a given situation is entitled to protec=tion. Just because
thee Accused cenuld have: violated his vict ims’ privacy even further by placing cameras in individival stalls
or directly insiEde of toileet bowls does not mean that he did not violate his victims’ priwacy by pl=acing
secret camerass in the meore common priveate areas of the locker room where a sense of ™ privacy s#till exists_
As many of th=e Victim® s testified to, and as common sense dictates, the purpose of a I ocker roomm and
shower is to geet naked, Thygiene, and chaunge clothes. The locker room is segregated bwy sex and &s separatee
and apart fronm the rest ©f the gym, base.. and public at large.

Unsurpr-isingly, thhe appellate military courts have routinely upheld the Article 1 20c convi ctions of
those who secmretly recoxd the private arecas of unconsenting individuals—even when t-hose indiveiduals
hawe voluntaritly displaysed their private #in more common private areas such as locker rooms. Seze, e.g,
Urzited States —v. Barattcz, 77 M.J. 691, 692 (N.M.C.C.A. 2018) (upholding the convictzion of a S=ailor who=
“[£ Jor nearly f=our years_ . . .recorded un suspecting individuals in the locker room at a= naval ins#allation
gy’ by “hid[_ing] a smeall camera in thes heel of his running shoe and manually record[ing] coll=eagues
showering”); dnited Stcates v. Ali, 2022 «CCA LEXIS 427, at *4 (N.M.C.C.A. July 21,. 2022) (upholding
thes convictione of a Sailer who “surreptitiously made over 60 video recordings of fellow male Saailors
exaiting the shower in thue forward head” of the USS Alabama, specifically noting that “[nJone off the
Sailors conserted to be@ng video recordesd in this location, where they had an expectastion of pri=vacy™).
See also Unitezd States w. Rocha, 2020 CCA LEXIS 317, at ¥*18-19 (N.M.C.C.A. Sepsember 17_ 2020)

5
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(approving of an _AFCCA casse in which a victim waas found to have had a reasonable exppectatiom of
privacy in not beiing recordedl even though she was “voluntarily naked in a vehicle parkexd in a puablic
area,”™ with her fe et hanging Outside after a sexual rendezvous).?

Indeed, the facts of Bar-arta are nearly identical to the facts of this case. In Baraita, the acecused not
only rmade videoss of unsuspe<cting individuals in a TNavy locker room, but he also placed camerass in his
home to “surrepti tiously recosrd house guests undre=ssing and showering.” 77 M.J. at 692. In hol«ding that
the accused’s sentence of threse years” confinement and a dismissal was not excessive, the court held that
“[i]n za locker roo-m on a mili®ary installation,” the aaccused “violated the privacy of unsumspecting men who-
reasomably assunmed no one vsvould record them undiressing and showering.” Id. at 693. The Couart then
obser~wed that the accused’s ““ deception and betraya 1 were even greater in his own home_" Id “By
planti mg hidden c-ameras ina bedroom and bathroomm, carefully positioning them to capt-ure guestEs in bed,
using the toilet, oer exiting the shower, regularly dowwnloading the recorded video to his computer=, and
methodically sortting and stor-ing the files, the [accumsed] evidenced a sustained intent to Jinvade thme privacy
of trussting house guests for huis own sexual gratification. The voyeurism lasted for four years aned ended
only wwhen the [accused] was caught.” Id.

Whatever E stLt Pattersson’s victims® reasonalble expectation of privacy may have Bbeen in tEhe locker
room Vis a vis ha=ving their prrivate parts viewed, alll the evidence presented has shown tknat the vi ctims did
not ccensent to theeir being recorded. Accordingly, £he victims in this case maintained th-eir reasomable
expectation of pravacy in not being recorded, and the Accused violated UCMIJ Article 1 20¢ by kxnowingly

recordding their private areas ~without their consent &and “under circumstances in which [&hey] ha[«d] a

? The favorambly cited AF®CCA case was United SEates v. Lee, 2017 CCA LEXIS 185 (A.F .C.C.A.2a017). In
conclirding that thes victim had = reasonable expectation of privacy in not being recorded under Article 12@(c)(d)(3),
the Corurt noted thaat the victim =nd her partner “left the gparty and went to the parked car intendirg to enga=ge in
sexuall conduct,” amnd that “[t]he- logical (and only reasorable) inference to be drawn from that cconduct is ¢ hat both
... waanted to disrcabe and engagze in that activity in private, outside the view of other partygoers (the ‘pubTic’ in this
case).”” /d at *16. Notably, thes Court held that “[a]ltho-ugh other partygoers eventually found tkaem and azpparently
watch.ed some of tkheir activity, sthat alone does not precl ude a finding that [the victim] did not re-asonably sthink she
would be free fromm prying eyes . Id at *16—17. Ultimaately, the Court concluded: “We cannot say that wwhen
viewirag the evidermce in the liglat most favorable to the FPProsecution, a reasonable fact-finder cou 1d not hav=e found
that [tkhe victim] haad a reasonab le expectation of privacy~ (as defined by Article 120¢) generally .. .. .” Id  The facts
of this case compe the same co=nclusion.
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reaseonable exgpectation of privacy.” 10 U.S.C. § 920c(a)(2).

The De=fense is essentially asking the Court to ignore on point case law and conmimon senss«e in their
mot® on. The immplicatioms for the Defense position are mind-boggling. If their motion ~were to be= granted,
it weould standl for the psropositiom that it is perfectly legal for someone to enter a gym shower/clmanging
area of any se-x and receord patroms nude with no consequences.® Additionally, if, as D=efense ass=erts,
lockeer rooms and show-ers have mo privacy, every single nude patron would be culpabele of indeecent
exposure. The Defense motion, &and its logical conclusions, have no bearing in fact or law. Theim motion
mus—t be denie=d.

<. ReliefRequessted. The government requests that the Court deny the Defense=’s motion_

5. Burdien of Praof. “Except as otherwise provided in this Manual the burden of persuas@on on anw’

factmaal issue the resoluztion of which is necessary to decide a motion shall be on the meoving paraty.”

R.C _M. 905.

6. Oral Argumemt. The Government respectfully requests oral argument.

K. D. CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Thiss motion wvas serveed upon defense counsel and the court electronically on 18 Aug-ust 2022.

K. D.CARTER
Captain, U.S. Marine Corps
Trial Counsel

3 Fo-x a broad cverview o fthe histomrical developments of criminal offenses involving surreptit-ious recordlings please
see @ OMMENT:RE-TH INKING PRIVACY: PEEPING TOMS, VIDEO VOYEURS, AND FFAILURE =OF THE
CRI MINAL L-AW TO R_ECOGNIZE A REASONABLE EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY INi THE PUB=LIC
SPACE, 49 Aen. UL. Rev. 1127.

KLY
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WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 15T LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F.
PATTERSON’S EXPERT CONSULTANT
Plaintiff, REQUEST, SUPPORTING DECLARATION

OF COUNSEL, and EXHIBITS

V.

CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON, FIRST
LIEUTENANT, USMC,

Accused.

TO: THE PLAINTIFF, BY AND THROUGH CAPTAIN KADIAN D. CARTER, U.S.
MARINE CORPS, and CAPTAIN PATRICK E. FLEMING CAPTAIN, U.S. MARINE CORPS,
TRIAL COUNSELS IN THE ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER,

CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON, FIRST LIEUTENANT, USMC, the accused in the
above-referenced matter, by and through the undersigned civilian defense counsel, in association with
detailed defense attorneys, Captain Kevin M. Courtney, USMC, and Captain Thomas J. Giblin, IIL,
USMC, respectfully requests the Convening Authority on behalf of the Plaintiff, per Rules for Courts-
Martial, Rule 703(d), authorize the employment of, and fix the compensation for, the following expert

consultant: _Psy.D.. Dr.-is the Director of Intrapsychic Offense-specific
Treatment. He routinely performs forensic evaluations and consultations to determine the existence

of mental, emotional and/or psychological conditions suffered by individuals pending criminal
proceedings. He performs this works on behalf of the United States government pursuant to
contracts with United States Federal Probation, United States Pretrial Services, and the City of San

Diego, as well as for members of the private bar, as in the instant case. His addresses, including his

e ————



I - [ ricum Vise and

Biography is attached as “Exhibit A” and “Exhibit B.” The defense has a substantial and good faith
beliefthat the “the empioyment at Government expense of’ Dr.-as an “consultant is considered
necessary, for the reasons below.

Dr.-employment asan expert consultant is considered necessary because the defense
has 2 good faith and substantial belief that the offenses charged in the current charge sheet are a
consequence of the accused’s mental, emotional and psychological condition at the time of the alleged
offenses, such that 1¥LT Christopher F. Patterson, USMC, was clinically susceptible to a diagnosable

o Y - st s
offenses was a proximate result of is | GG condition. The defense
notes that 1°LT Patterson did ||| for bis condition and was prescribed

medications by a Navy doctor. Depending on the results of Dr.-expert consultation, the
defense tentatively intends to contend at trial that 1LT Patterson is legally entitled to raise the
affirmative defense of lack of mental responsibility per R.C.M. 916(k)(1).

The defense has a good faith and substantial belief that the offenses charged in the current
charge sheet, at the time of their commission were as a proximate result of a severe mental disease
or defect then suffered by 1stLt Patterson, who, as a proximate result, was unable to appreciate the
nature and quality or the wrongfulness of his act. Since the Plaintiff'is by law afforded the advantage
at trial of the presumption that the accused is presumed to have been mentally responsible at the time
of the alleged offense, and moreover, since the accused by law is required to rebut this presumption
by clear and convincing evidence that he was not mentally responsible at the time of the alleged
offense, it is necessary, crucial and only fair, that this request for Dr.- services be granted.

Dr. i #o1k is described in “Bxhibit A His Curriculum Vitae s set forth in “Exhibit
B.” The estimated cost of DrJJexvert consultation services is $5,200.00. See, “Exhibit €.~
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Further support for this request is set forth in the following Declaration of Counsel which is

incorporated by reference here as though set out in full.

Dated: 1 June 2022 Very respectfully,

ormey for the Accused,
p ChristopherF. Patterson, 1st Lieutenant, USMC

1/
DECLARATION OF COUNSEL
IN SUPPORT OF 15T LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON’S
EXPERT CONSULTANT REQUEST.

I, JEFFREY W. CARVER, the undersigned, do hereby declare under the penalty of
perjury in accordance with the state laws of California and the law of the United States of
America that the following is true and correct, and if called upon to testify, could and would
swear under an oath that:

1. I am a practicing attorney and have been licensed by, and have continuously been a
member in good standing with, the State Bar of California since 1976.

2. I have been practicing law from my office in San Diego since 1988.

3. I am a retired Lieutenant Commander, JAGC, USN,

4, My practice chiefly deals with the defense of criminal cases, in state and federal courts,
with an emphasis on military courts-martial.

5. I have also been engaged by governments to provide legal services, and, for example, I
was retained by the County of San Diego to defend a homicide detective with the San
Diego County District Attorney’s Office on a federal civil rights claim which I litigated to
the United States Supreme Court.

6. Through my practice I have become familiar with Dr._Psy.D..
7. Iwould rate Dr JJJeputation in the 1ocal San Diego legal community as impeccable.

3
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10.

11.
12,

13.

"
11

C C

He is well-regarded by attorneys of the defense bar as well as those who are prosecutors.
I am a member of the San Diego Criminal Defense Bar Association and I subscribed to its
online bulletin board service.

When I recently posted a query to fellow members of the San Diego Criminal Defense Bar
Association on the best forensic psychologist in San Diego, the answer from every
attorney who responded was Dr-

I agree with the assessment of my colleagues.

I believe Dr.-is fair, effective, and charges fees which are in line with other
practitioners in the field locally.

I believe his assistance on the instant case is necessary for the defense team to adequately
and effectively prepare for a fair trial in this matter,

Executed this 1 June 2022, aj
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NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
GENERAL COURT-MARTIAL

)
UNITED STATES )
) VICTIMS’ LEGAL COUNSEL
V. ) NOTICE OF APPEARANCE
) ON BEHALF OF
CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON ) Capt
FIRST LIEUTENANT )
U.S. MARINE CORPS ) 19 May 2022
)
)
)

1. I am Captain Austin L. Swink, U.S. Marine Corps, Victims® Legal Counsel, Marine Corps Air
Station Miramar. I am admitted to practice law and currently in good standing in the state of
Florida and am certified in accordance with Article 27(b) and sworn in accordance with Article
42(a) of the Uniform Code of Military Justice, I herebv enter mv appearance in the above
captioned court-martial on behalf of CaptainM.S. Marine Corps, a named
victim in this case.

2. The Regional Victims® Legal Counsel detailed me to represent Capt- and I have
entered into an attorney-client relationship with him. I have not acted in any manner which might
disqualify me in the above captioned court-martial.

3. Capt-reserves the right to be present throughout the court-martial in accordance with
Military Rule of Evidence 615, with the exception of closed proceedings that do not involve him.

4. To permit a meaningful exercise of Captqrights and privileges, I respectfully request
that this Court direct the defense and government to provide me with informational copies of
motions and accompanying papers filed pertaining to issues that fall under Military Rule of

Evidence 412, 513, 514, and 615 and any other matter in which Capt ights and
privileges are addressed.

5. Capt-has limited standing in this court-martial and reserves the right to make factual
statements and legal arguments himself or through counsel.

6. My current contact information is as follows:

Building 2244
MCAS Miramar
San Diego, CA 92145

Respectfully submitted this 19 day of May 2022,

A.L. SWINK

Appellate Exhibit
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DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

UNITED STATES )
)
%, ) VICTIMS’ LEGAL COUNSEL
) NOTICE OF APPEARANCE
CHRISTOPHER PATTERSON ) ON BEHALF OF
FIRST LIEUTENANT ) GUNNERY SERGEANT-
U.S. MARINE CORPS )

1. I, Captain Joseph D. Zottola, USMC, Victims’ Legal Counsel, Marine Corps Base Camp
Pendleton, CA, admitted to practice law and currently in good standing in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and am certified in accordance with Article 27(b) and sworn in accordance with
Article 42(a) of the Uniform Code of Military Justice, hereby enter my appearance in the above
captioned court-martial on behalf of Gunnery Sergeantia named victim in the case.

2. The Regional Victims® Legal Counsel-West. Marine Corps Victims’ Legal Counsel
Organization, detailed me to represent GySgt and I have entered into an attorney-client
relationship with GySgt I have not acted in any manner which might disqualify me in the
above captioned court-martial.

3. GyS gt-reserves the right to be present throughout the court-martial in accordance with
Military Rule of Evidence 615, with the exception of closed proceedings that do not involve him.

4. To permit a meaningful exercise of GySgT-rights and privileges, I respectfully request
that this Court direct the defense and government to provide me with informational copies of
motions and accompanying papers filed pertaining to issues that fall under Military Rules of
Evidence 412, 513, 514, and 615 and in which GySgt ights and privileges are addressed.

5. GyS gt-has limited standing in this court-martial, and GySgt-resewes the right to
make factual statements and legal arguments himself or through counsel.

6. My current contact information is as follows:

Building 53505

Cami Pendleton, CA 92055

Respectfully submitted this 20th day of May 2022.

IJ. D.Z0 I TOLA

Captain, USMC
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DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

UNITED STATES
VICTIM LEGAL COUNSEL
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE ON
BEHALF OF SGT-USMC

V.

CHRISTOPHER F. PATTERSON
FIRST LIEUTENANT
U.S. MARINE CORPS

e e St et e e et

1 I, Captain Brett M. Johnson, USMC, Victim Legal Counsel,
MCAGCC, Twentynine Palms, CA admitted to practicing law and
currently in good standing in the State of New Mexico and,
although not appearing as a defense counsel or trial counsel,
certified in accordance with Article 27 (b), UCMJ, and sworn in
accordance with Article 42 (a), UCMJ, hereby enter my appearance
in the above captioned court-martial session of court on behalf
of Sergeantﬁ USMC, a named victim in the charges.

2. On 22 October 2021, I, Captain Brett M. Johnson, Marine
Corps Victims’ Legal Counsel Organization, was detailed to
represent Sergeant and I have entered into an attorney-
client relationship with him. I have not acted in any manner
which might disqualify me in the above captioned court-martial.

3. I have reviewed the Navy-Marine Corps Trial Judiciary
Uniform Rules of Practice.

4. Sergeant -reserves the right to be present throughout
the court-martial 1n accordance with Military Rule of Evidence
615, with the exception of closed proceedings that do not
involve Sergeant

5. To permit a meaningful exercise of Sergeant rights
and privileges, I respectfully request that this Court direct
the defense and government to provide me with informational
copies of motions and accompanying papers filed pertaining to
issues that fall under Military Rules of Evidence 412, 513, 514,
and 615 and in which Sergeant_rights and privileges are
addressed.

6. SergeantF recognizes he has limited standing in this
court-martial, however, he reserves the right to make factual
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statements and legal arguments himself or through counsel when
appropriate.

7. My current contact information is as follows:

Room 82, Building 1417
MCAGCC, Twentynine Palms, CA 92278

Respectfully submitted this 20th day of May 2022,

B. M. JOHNSON

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a copy of this Notice of Dppearance was
served upon the Military Judge, Trial Ccunsel, and Defense
Counsel on 20 May 2022 via email and submission te the Judiciary
Share Point account.
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WESTERNJUDCIRINST 5810.1

WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY

UNITETD STATES )

)
_ . . ) COURT-MARTIAL NOTICE
(57 T CHALrS T mET ST e ADPPEARANCE

/‘/9-7"//:5,2,:@,‘// sl o A

1. 1, Jeffrey W. Carver, admitted to practice law, currently in
good standing before the bar of the highest court of the State(s)
of California as well as before the bar of the United States
Supreme Court and the bar of the Court of Appeals of the Armed
Forces, and, having appeared as counsel in United States military
courts-martial on approximately 500 occasions during my legal
career, military or civilian, hereby enter appearance as attorney
on behalf of the accused in the above captioned court-martial to do
all that is necessary in connection therewith. I certify that I am
not now de-certified or suspended from practice in Navy-Marine
Corps courts-martial by the Judge Advocate General of the Navy.

2. I hereby certify that I have obtained a copy and agree to abide
by: (1) the Rules for Courts-Martial and the Military Rules of
Evidence set forth in the current editions of the Manual Courts-
Martial; (2) United States, JAG INSTRUCTION 5803.1 series
(Professional Conduct of Attorneys Practicing Under the Supervision
of the Judge Advocate General); (3) NAVMARCORTRIJUDAC INSTRUCTICN
5810.5B (Uniform Rules of Practice Before Navy-Marine Corps Courts-
Martial): (4) WESTERNJUDCIRINST 5810.1 (Western Judicial Circuit
Rules of Court); and, (5) if published, the local District Rules of
Practice for the Judicial District within which the above-captioned
is currently pending. I further certify and agree to provide, upon
request by the Circuit Military Judge or designee, a copy of the
professional responsibility rules applicable to the Bar of the
State in which I am licensed to practice law.

3. Unless indicated otherwise by the accused, all post-trial
matters, including the staff judge advocate’s or legal officer’s
recommendation and the accused’s copy of the record of trial should
be served on the undersigned. For purposes of this trial and all
subsequent review matters, notice to and service upon the
undersigned may be affected at the address listed below.
APPELLATEE)(HIBIT__‘;{_@Z_
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WESTERNJUDCIRINST 5810.1

Subj: NOTICE OF APPEARANCE ICO US V. /5’7 7 6/7‘/21_(;’915”5@_.

LT T RS O N, USpar
4. Under penalty of perjury, I swear or affirm all the *
information on this notice of appearance is true, correct and
complete.

5. Signed this date, 22 A4 , 202 &

Printed full name under which licensed to practice law: Jeffrey
W. Carver

State(s)admitted to practice law: Calilifornia
State Bar Number (s) :-

Office Telephone Number: _
Facsimile Telephone Number: _

9
APPELLATE Exmair__\";i_,__
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DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
NAVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

WNITED STA TES )
)
v, ) VICTIMS’ LEGAL COUNSEL
) NOTICE OF APPEARANCE
«CHRISTOPHER P_ATTERSON ) ON BEHALE QF
FIRST LIEUTENA-NT ) SERGEANTh
W.S. MARINE CORRPS )

1. 1, Captain Joseph D. Zottola, USMC, Victims’ Legal Counsel, Marine Corps Base Canmip
Wendleton, CA, admiitted to practice law and currently in good standing in the Commonwesalth of
FPennsylvania and amm certified in accordance with Article 27(b) and sworn in accordance wvith
AArticle 42(a) of the Uniform Code of Military Justice, hereby enter my appearance in the sabove
«aptioned court-mart-ial on behalf of Sergeant-a named victim in the case.

2. The Regional Vic-tims’ Legal Counsel-West, Marine Corps Victims’ Legal Counsel
®rganization, detailesd me to represent Sgt nd I have entered into an attorney-clieent
wmelationship with Sg I have not acted in any manner which might disqualify me i the
above captioned coumrt-martial.

3. 8 gtFreser‘ves the right to be present throughout the court-martial in accordance- with
Military Rule of Eviadence 615, with the exception of closed proceedings that do not invol ve him.

<. To permit a meaneingful exercise of Sgt ights and privileges, I respectfully request
wthat this Court direct the defense and government to provide me with informational copies of
mmotions and accomp anying papers filed pertaining to issues that fall under Military Rules of
TFvidence 412, 513, 514, and 615 and in which Sgt rights and privileges are addmressed.

3. Sgl-has lizmited standing in this court-martial, and Sgt-reserves the righat to
mmake factual statements and legal arguments himself or through counsel.

. My current contaect information is as follows:

Building 53505
Camp Pendleton, CA 92055

Respectfully submitted this 22th day of July 2022.

lJ. D. ZO!TOLA

Captain, USMC

vi/lir B/
Appellate Exhibsit X()(1/11 B
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WESTERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
N.AVY-MARINE CORPS TRIAL JUDICIARY
UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS
CAMP PENDLETON, CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS FIRST
LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER F.
Plzaintiff, PATTERSON’S NOTICE OF PLEAS AND
FORUM

V.

CHRISTOPHER F. PAT TERSON,
First LEeutenant, U.S. Marine Corps,

Accused.

1. Pleas: In accordance witth the current Trial Management Order, (‘TMO”), the accused,. 1°Lt
Christoplaer F. Patterson, LISMC, hereby gives notice of his pleas to the charges and

specificat ions in the above-mreferenced matters as follows. To the Charge of violation of Aarticle
120c, andl the specificationss thereunder, 1Lt Patterson pleads ‘Not Guilty.” To the first
Additional Charge of a viol.ation of Article 120c, and the specifications thereunder, 1¥Lt P®*atterson
pleads ‘N ot Guilty.” To A dditional Charge II of a violation of Article 133, and the sole
specificatdon thereunder, 1°°Lt Patterson pleads ‘Not Guilty.” To all charges and specifications
presently before the court, 1°Lt Patterson pleads ‘Not Guilty.’

2. Forunma: In accordance wavith the current TMO, 1°Lt Patterson, hereby gives notice of h_is
choice of™ forum for the trial of the charges and specifications in the above-referenced matters as

follows. 1 "Lt Patterson chomoses trial by members.

Very respectfully,

J. W. Carver
Civilian Defense Counsel for 1% Lt Christopher F.
Patterson, USMC

i

Appellate Extaibit Y\ 7}
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
On 20 July 2022, I cazaused this document to be served upon all counsel and the court.

Dated: 20 Jul.y 2022

Very respectfully,

J. W. CARVER, Declarant

Appellate Exhibit —SFA~Vh
Page >~ of QO




COURT RULINGS & ORDERS



THERE ARE NO COURT RULINGS
AND ORDERS



STATEMENT OF TRIAL RESULTS



STATEMENT OF TRIAL RESULTS

SECTION A - ADMINISTRATIVE

1. NAME OF ACCCUSED (last, first, MI)
PATTERSON , Christopher, F.

2. BRANCH

Marine Corps 0-2

5. CONVENING COMMAND 6. TYPE OF COURT-MARTIAL

3. PAYGRADE [ 4. DoD ID NUBMBER

7. COMPOSITION

8. DATE SENTENCE AaDJUDGED

1st Marine Logsistics Group General

Judge Alone - MJA16

Aug 19,2022

SECTION B - FINDINGS

SEE FINDINGS PAGE

SECTION C - TOTAL ADJUDGED SENTENCE

9. DISCHARGE OR DISMISSAL | 10. CO*NFINEMENT 11. FORFEITURES 12. FINES 13. FINE PENALTY
Dismissal 36 Mcenths N/A N/A N/A

14. REDUCTIOM |15. DEATH 16— REPRIMAND 17. HARD LABOR 18. RESTRICTION [ 19. HARD LABOR PERIOD

N/A Yes (" No (@ Ye=s (" No (@ Yes (" No (@ Yes (C No (@ ||N/A

20. PERIOD ANID LIMITS OF RESTRICTICON

N/A

SECTION D - CONFINEMENT CREDIT

21. DAYS OF PFRETRIAL CONFINEMENT CREDIT | 22. DAYS OF JUDICIALLY ORDERED CREDIT

23. TOT=AL DAYS OF CREDIT

0 0

0 days

SECTION E - PLEA AGREEMENT OR PRE-TRIAL AGREEMENT

24. LIMITATIONES ON PUNISHMENT CONITAINED IN THE PLEA AGREEMENT OR PRE-TRIAL AGREEMENT

There was no polea agreement.

SECTION F - SUSPENSION OR CLEMENCY RECOMMENDATION

25. DID THE MILATARY JUDGE 26. PORTION TO WHICH IT APPLIES

27. RECOMMENDED [DURATION

RECOMMEND S®USPENSION OF THE
SENTENCE OR €LEMENCY?

Yes ( No (&

28. FACTS SUP"PORTING THE SUSPENSSION OR CLEMENCY RECOMMENDATION

SECTION G - NOTIFICATIONS

29. Is sex offendesr registration required in asccordance with appendix 4 to enclosure 2 of DoDI 1325.07?
30. Is DNA collec=tion and submission requir—ed in accordance with 10 U.S.C. § 1565 and DoDI 5505.14?
31. Did this case involve a crime of domesti~c violence as defined in enclosure 2 of DoDI 6400.067

32. Does this cas-e trigger a firearm possesssion prohibition in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 9227

Yes &% No (O
Yes & No (
Yes & No (e
Yes &% No (O

SECTION H - NOTES AND SIGNATURE

37. NOTES

33. NAME OF JLIJDGE (last, first, Ml) 34, BRANCH 35. PAYGRADE | 36. DATE SIGNED | 38. JUDGE'S SIGNATURE
GOODE, Andmxrea, C. Marine Corps 0-5 Aug 19, 2022 GOODE.ANDR gggauy s=igned by
’ DE. A%
EfA CHAMPAG AMPAGNEE,

Date: 2022 .08.19
15:09:17 -=0700'

INE

January 2026 PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE

Page= 1 of 5 Pages
A=dobe Acrobat DC



STATEMIENT OF TRIAL RESULTS - FINDINGS

SECTION | - LIST OF FINDINGS

ORDER OR

Offense description

Exceptions and
Substitutions

CHARGE ARTICLE | SPECIFICATION PLEA FINDING REGULATION i Sl T
120¢c  Specification 1: Not Guilty | INot Guilty | N/A
Cha:rge Offénse descript®on  |Indecent recording '
Specification 2: Not Guilty IGu:lty—| N/A
Offense descriptmon |Indecent recording
Specification 3: Not Guilty | |Guiny | N/A
Offense descript®on |!ndecent recording
Specification 4: IW‘ |GU'1W—| NiA
Offense descript@on |Indecent recording
Specification 5: W\ IGullty—| N/A
Offense descript@on |Indecent recording
Specification 6: Wl IGullty—| N/A
Offense descriptaon |Indecent recording
Specification 7: IW' Guilty | N/A
Offense descriptdon |Indecent recording
120c  Specification 1: le Guilty |Gui]ty N/A
Additional Charge | Offense description Ilndﬂn recording
Specification 2: Il—‘i;—(::ilry ~—| Guilty by Exception | N/A

Ilndecent recording

excepted words, not guilty. To the specification as excepted, guilty.

Guilty except for the words "on divers occasions between on or abosut 9 January 2020 and". T I

Specification 3:
Offense description

Exceptions and
Substitutions

|Not Guilty

Guilty by Exception

N/A

|Indecent recording

Specification 4:

Offense description

Guilty except for the words "on divers occasions”. To the excepted words, not guilty. To the
specification as excepted, guilty.

—

Specification 5:

Offense description

Specification 6:

Offense descrip®ion

Specification 7:

Offense descrip®ion

Specification 8:

Offense descrip®ion

Specification 9:

Offense descrip®ion

Not Guilty } |Guiity | N/A 120cect
l[ndecem recording — i
INot Guilty IGuﬂ:y N/A
|lndecem recording

Not Gilty |Guilty | N/A

[Indecent recording
INot Guilty |Guilty | N/A
|Indecent recording

Not Guilty IGuiity N/A

Indecent recording

Not Guilty IGuilty by E&S I N/A

|lndecent recording

Janwiary 2020

PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE

Page 2 of 5 PPage:
Adobe Acrokat DC



STATEMENT OF TRIAL RESULTS - FINDINGS

SECTION | - LIST OF FINDINGS

Additional Charge I1

ORDER OR
CHARGE ARTICLE | SPECIFICATION PLEA FINDING REGULATION HO DR INISHRALE DIBRS
“OFFENSE ARTICLE
VIOLATED
Exceptions and Guilty excep=t for the language "28 July 2019" substituting the language "10 June 2019". To the
Substitutions excepted langsuage, not guilty. To the specification as excepted and substituted, guilty.
133 Specification: |Nnt Guilty [Dismissed N/A

Offense description IConduct unbecoming generally

Withdrawn and
Dismissed

charges.

Conditionally dismissed on the grounds of unreasormable multi plication of

January 2020

PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE

Page 3 of 5 Pages
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MILETARY JUDGE ALONE SEGMENTED SENTENCE

SECTION J - SENTENCING

1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9

CHARGE SPECIFICATIOM {CONFINEMENT CONCURRENT WITH CONSECUTIVES WITH FINEE

Cha[‘ge Specification 1; N/A N/A N/A N/A
Specification 2; % Months N/A f,];_g,z,gg,7A§ g Chl None
Specification 3; 5 Months N/A (1:,};,13,%:;,2,7? ;, g Chl None
Specification 4: 2 Months N/A fggi;;f;g Chl None
Specification 5: 3 Months N/A fggigg.ﬁ;g Chl None
Specification 6: 2 Months Ch1, Specification 7 N/A None
Specification 7: 2 Months Ch 1, Specification 6 N/A None

A«dditional Charge 1 Specification i: 5 Months N/A gg{;g,z{;’igﬁkdd Chl Nane ‘
Specification 2: 2 Months N/A fg;:i:zzgig’;\dd Chl None
Specification 3. 2 Months N/A ?gzié’g’g’;\ ddChi None
Specification 4: 2 Months N/A ]C,g,;:g:z:;j:; ddChl None
Specification 5: 2 Months N/A f,g,lsjigﬁzg, 9Add Chl None
Specification 6: 2 Months N/A ?E,[:‘,ﬁig:gi;\dd Chl None
Specification 7: 3 Months N/A Chl,2,34.5, AddChl None

Jaanuary 2020

Specitication 8:

2 MoR@EVIOUS BURION IS OBSOLETE

Fri] Y s, Wiee IO, IO, W~ 5~ W 0 PO 1
LR O]

1,2,34,5,6,1.9

PRSE% of 5Page
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Chi.2,3,4.5,
Spectfication 9: 2 Months N/A SECTION?%EK'IEN‘C‘}N[E AddChl
12345678

Additiomal Charge [T Specafication: N/A N/A N/A N/A

Januav 2020 PEREVIOUS EDITION 1S OBSCLETE Page 5 of 5 Page

Adobe Acrobat D



CONVENING AUTHORITY'S ACTIONS



I ( POST-TRIAL ACTION( (

SECTIO=N A - STAFF JUDGE ADVOCATE REVIEW

l. NAME OF ACCU SED (LAST, FIR ST, MI)

2. PAYGRADE/RANK

Patterson, Christopher F.

02

4. UNIT OR ORGAMIZATION 5. CURRENT ENLISTMENT 6. "TERM
Combat Logistics Regimeant 17, 1st Marine Lo=gistics Group 03-Jun-2017 Indefinite

7. CONVENING AU THORITY | 8. COURT- 9. COMPOSITION 10. DATE SEEINTENCE
(UNIT/ORGANIZATION) MAaRTIAL TYPE ' ADJUDGED

Ist Marine Logistics Groump Gen enl Judge Alone - MJA16 19-Aug-2022

Post-Trial Matters to Consider

pa uthority?

11. Has the accused maade a request for deferment of reduction in grade? " Yes ® No
12. Has the accused nmade a request for deferment of confinement? " Yes (& No
13. Has the accused mmade a request for deferment of adjudged forfeitures? C Yes (¢ No
14. Has the accused nmade a request for deferment of automatic forfeitures? ® Yes " No
15. Has the accused mmade a request for ~waiver of automatic forfeitures? ¢ Yes " No
16. Has the accused sLabmitted necessar=y information for transferring forfeitures for - o
oenefit of dependents? = e e
17. Has the accused stabmitted matters for convening authority's review? (® Yes (" No
18. Has the victim(s) submitted matters for convening authority's review? " Yes (¢ No
19. Has the accused stabmitted any rebusttal matters? ¢ Yes " No
0. Has the military jusdge made a suspe=nsion or clemency recommendation? " Yes (e No
21. Has the trial couns=el made a recommmendation to suspend any part of the sentence? | Yes (¢ No
22. Did the court-mart-ial sentence the aeccused to a reprimand issued by the convening C Yes @ No

23. Summary of Clemeency/Deferment Requested by Accused and/or Crime Victim, if applicablle.

poeriod of six months.

— The SJA consulted with tihe Convening Authcarity and explained his clemency authority under Art. 60, UCMJ.

— 0n 25 Aug 22, Civilian Dexfense Counsel subrmitted a letter dated 25 August 2022, requesting the deferment o—f automatic forfeitmures. On
8 Sep 22, Civilian Defense Counsel submitted & letter dated 8 September 2022, requesting the waiver of automeatic forfeitures for a

Convening Authority'ss Action -

— CONTINUED ON PAGE 3
24. Convening Author-ity Name/Title 25. SJA Name
Brigadier General P. N. FREETZE/ Commanding General Lieutenant Colonel-
26. SJA signature 27. Date
1 November 2022

Patterson, Christopher F.

Page= 1 of 4




"1_NB:CO NG AUTHORIL { 7ION

28. Having reviewed all matters submitted by the accused and the victim(s) pursuant to R.C.M. 1106/1106A, and
after being advised by the staff judge advocate or legal officer, | take the following action in this case: [If deferring
or waiving any punishment, indicate the date the deferment/waiver will end. Attach signed reprimand if applicable.
Indicate what action, if any, taken on suspension recommendation(s) or clemency recommendations from the judge.]

- I have considered all matters submitted by the accused and the accused's spouse. On 1 November 2022, |, the Convening Authority,
defer all of the automatic forfeitures from 2 September 2022 until the date the Entry of Judgment is signed by the Military Judge. The
request for the waiver of automatic forfeitures for six {6) months following the Entry of Judgment is denied. The remainder of the

sentence is approved as adjudged.

29. Convening authority’s written explanation of the reasons for taking action on offenses with mandatory minimum
punishments or offenses for which the maximum sentence to confinement that may be adjudged exceeds two years,
or offenses where the adjudged sentence includes a punitive discharge (Dismissal, DD, BCD) or confinement for

more than six months, or a violation of Art. 120(a) or 120({b) or 120b:

-0On 27 September 2022, | considered all matters submitted by the accused. Due to the nature of the accused's offenses, | did not believe
that clemency was appropriate; therefore, the request to defer automatic forfeitures through the Entry of Judgment and waive
automatic forfeitures for six months following the Entry of Judgment was denied and the sentence was approved as adjudged.

- Now, after careful consideration of all matters submitted on behalf of the accused's request for clemency, | believe that clemency in the
form of deferral of automatic forfeitures through the Entry of Judgment is warranted, given the immediate financial distress the
accused's spouse is facing. Due to the nature and circumstances of the accused's offenses, however, | do not believe that clemency in

the form of waiver of automatic forfeitures is appropriate in his case.

31. Date

/ /MV 2622~

32. Date convening authority action was forwarded to PTPD or Review Shop. NOV 0 1 2022

Convening Authority's Action - Patterson, Christopher F.
Page 2 of 4



CONTINUATIL | IET-CA'S ACTION AND ENTR"./ X DGMENT

23. Summary of Clemency/Deferment Requested by Accused and/or Crime Victim, if applicable. (Continued)

-0On 13 Oct 22, Civilian Defense Counsel submitted a letter dated 13 October 2022, requesting that the Convening Authority reconsider
his action; specifically, the denial of the accused's request for waiver of forfeitures, due to an error in block 16 (Enclosure 1} regarding
the submission of information for transferring forfeitures for benefit of dependents.

-0On 21 Oct 22, the accused's spouse,_ent an emai! dated 21 October 2022, requesting that the Convening Authority
reconsider his action; specifically, the denial of the accused's request for waiver of forfeitures, due to an error in block 16 (Enclosure 1)
regarding the submission of information for transferring forfeitures for benefit of dependents.

- The victims did not submit matters pursuant to R.C.M. 1106a.

' — voma Z 1 '
L aAlUel ST T lbLUlJllbl 1

Convening Authority's Action -
Page 3 of 4




CONTINU‘L‘_ .. SHEET-CASACTIONANDEN. 1 fJUDGMENT
29. CA's Explanation (Continued)

Convening Authority's Action - Patterson, Christopher F.
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ENTRY OF JUDGMENT



ENTRY OF JUDGMEN1

SECTION A - ADMINISTRATIVE

1. NAME OF ACCUJSED (LAST, FIRST, MI) 2. PAYGRADE/RANK | 3. DoD ID NUMBER
Pat@erson, Christopher F . 02

4. WNIT OR ORGA™NIZATION 5. CURRENT ENLISTMENT 6. TERM

Cormbat Logistics Reginment 17, 1st Marine Logistics Group 03-Jun-2017 Indefinite

7. CONVENING AUTHORITY | 8. COURT- 9. COMPOSITION 10. DATE COUIRT-MARTIAL
(UINIT/ORGANIZA_TION) MA _RTIAL TYPE ’ ADJOURNED

1st Marine Logistics Grasup Genesral Judge Alone - MJA16 |||19-Aug-2022

SECTION B - ENTRY OF JUDGMENT
**MUST be- signed by the Mil-itary Judge (or Circuit Military Judge) within 20 dayss of receipt**

11 . Findings of eac™h charge and speciification referred to trial. [Summary of each charge and specification
(imclude at a minimeam the gravamen off the offense), the plea of the accused, the findings or other disposition

acecounting for any exceptions and subsstitutions, any modifications made by the convening authority or any post-
trial ruling, order, omr other determinatioen by the military judge. R.C.M. 1111(b)(1)]

Charge: Violation of thee UCMJ, Article 120¢
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 1: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Not Guilty
Spec 2: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty
Spec 3: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty
Spec 4: Indecent Rec ording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 5: Indecent Rec ording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty
Sspec 6: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty
Spec 7: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty

Add Charge I: Violation of the UCMJ, Article 1220c
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 1: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty
Spec 2: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty by Excepotion*
Spec 3: Indecent Rec-ording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty by Excegotion®*
Spec 4: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 5: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 6: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 7: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty  FEnding: Guilty
Spec 8: Indecent Recording
Plea: Not Guilty FEnding: Guilty

Enctry of Judgment - Patterson, Christopher F.
Page 1 of &



12. Sentence to bwe Entered. Acco-u.nt for any modifications made by reason o1 any post-trial &xction by the
convening author-ity (including any action taken based on a suspension recommendation), confSinement credit, or any
post-trial rule, order, or other deterrm ination by the military judge. R.C.M. 1111(b)(2). If the s-entence was
determined by a rmilitary judge, ens-uwe confinement and fines are segmented as well as if a senstence shall run
concurrently or consecutively.

The Military Judge (seegmented sentencin g3 adjudged the following sentence:
- Dismissal, and 36 maonths of confinemerat to run as follows:
Charge: Violation of the UCMJ, Article T120c

Spec 2: 2 monthhs of confinement

Spec 3: 5 monthhs of confinement

Spec 4: 2 monthhs of confinement

Spec 5: 3 monthhs of confinement

Spec 6: 2 monthhs of confinement

Spec 7: 2 monthhs of confinement

Additional Charge- |: Violation of the UCCMAJ, Article 120c
Spec 1: 5 monthhs of confinement
Spec 2: 2 montlhs of confinement
Spec 3: 2 monthhs of confinement
Spec 4: 2 monthhs of confinement
Spec 5: 2 monthhs of confinement
Spec 6: 2 monthhs of confinement
Spec 7: 3 monthhs of confinement
Spec 8: 2 monthhs of confinement
Spec 9: 2 monthhs of confinement

Confinement for Chasrge, Specifications 2, 3, 4, 5, and Additional Charge I, Specifications 1, 2, 3,4, 5,6, 7, 8,9 willl run consecutively.
Confinement for Chasrge, Specifications 6,- 7~ will run concurrently.
Total confinement tirme will be 36 months.

Convening Authority=:
Approved as adjudged; however, the Corwening Authority granted, in part, the Accused's request for clemency, deferring automatic
forfeitures through tEhe Entry of Judgmen=t.

Pretrial confinement credit: 0 days

13. Deferment amd Waiver. Incluad e the nature of the request, the CA's Action, the effective date of the defermemt,
and date the defermment ended. For wv-aivers, include the effective date and the length of the waiver. RCM 1111(b)("3)

- On 25 Aug 22, Civilian Defense Counsel ssumbmitted a letter dated 25 Aug 22, requesting deferral of automatic <forfeitures though the=
entry of judgment ard waiver of automat-ic: forfeitures for a period of 6 months following the entry of judgmermt.

-On 27 Sep 22, the Convening Authority dile- nied that request.

-On 13 Oct 22, the Ciwilian Defense counseel submitted a letter dated 13 Oct 22, requesting that the Convening Authority reconsider Fis
denial.

-On 21 Oct 22, the ac cused's spouse submitted an email dated 21 Oct 22, requesting that the Convening Authoority reconsider his
denial.

-On 1 Nov 22, the Comvening Authority gr-amted the accused's request for deferral of automatic forfeitures thoLugh the entry of
judgment but deniec the request for waive=r of automatic forfeitures.

14. Action conveming authority toodk on any suspension recommendation from the military judgze:

N/A

Entry of Judgmenst - Patterson, Christopher F.
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15. Jud ge's signature: 16. Date judgment entered:
Digitally signed by

GOODEAN DREAC HA GOODE ANDREA.CHAMPAGNE, Nov 29, 2022

e |

Date: 2022.11.29 09:30:53 -08'00'

17. In aaccordance with RCM 1111(c)(1), the military judge who entered a judgment may modify the juidgment to
correct computational or Clerical errors within 14 days after the judgment was initially entered. Include any
modifi<cations here and ressign the Entry of Judgment.

18. Judge's signature: 19. Date judgment entered:

Entry of Judgment - Patterson, Christopher F.
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COsl\. (NUATION SHEET - ENTRY OF JUDG.JENT
11. Findings (Comtinued)

Spec 9: Indecent Recording***
Plea: Not Guilty Finding: Guilty bys E&S

Add Charge II: Violaation of the UCMJ, Article 133
Plea: Not Guilty Finding: Dismisse=d****
Spec: Conduct umbecoming generall=y
Plea: Not Guilty Finding: Dismisse=d****

*Guilty except for ttme words "on divers Occasions between on or about 9 January 2020 and". To the except-ed words, not guily. Tothe
specification as excexpted, guilty.

**Guilty except for the words "on divers occasions”. To the excepted words, not guilty. To the specifications as excepted, guiltwy.

***Guilty except for the language "28 Jur ly 2019" substituting the language "10 June 2019". To the excepteed language, not gu ilty. To the
specification as excexpted and substitute=d, guilty.

****Conditionally di smissed on the groumnds of unreasonable multiplication of charges.

Entry of Judgmemt - Patterson, Christopher F.
P-age 4 of 6
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CON.. (NUATION SHEET - ENTRY OF JUDG.MENT

12 . Sentence (Continuezd)

Emtry of Judgment - Patterson, Christopher F.
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CON-..NUATION SHEET - ENTRY OF JUDGwWIENT
13. Defermesnt and Waiver (Continued)

Entry of Judgment - Patterson, Christopher F.
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APPELLATE INFORMATION



IN UNITED STATES NAVY-MARINE CORPS
COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS

Before Panel No. 2

UNITED STATES NMCCA No. 202200262
Appellee APPELLANT’S MOTION FOR
V. SECOND ENLARGEMENT
Christopher F. PATTERSON Tried at Camp Pendleton, California on 23
First Lieutenant (O-2) May, 28 June, and 15-19 August 2022,
U.S. Marine Corps before a General Court-Martial convened

by Commanding General, 1st Marine
Logistics Group, LtCol Derek A. Poteet

and LtCol Andrea C. Goode, USMC,
Military Judges, presiding

Appellant

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGES OF THE UNITED STATES
NAVY-MARINE CORPS COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS

COMES NOW Appellant, by and through the undersigned counsel, and
respectfully moves for a second enlargement of time to file a brief and assignments
of error. The current due date is 16 March 2023. The number of days requested is
thirty. The requested due date is 15 April 2023.

The current status of the case:

1. The Record was docketed on 16 December 2022.

2. The Moreno III date is 16 June 2024.



3. Appellant is in confinement with a normal release date of 18
February 2025.

4. The Record consists of 953 transcribed pages and 2110 total pages.

5. The undersigned is still reviewing the record of trial.

Good cause exists for granting the requested enlargement. This case involves

a contested bench trial resulting in convictions for indecent visual recording and a
sentence of three years’ confinement and a dismissal. Appellant’s original appellate
defense counsel discovered he was conflicted from the case after reviewing the
record of trial. The undersigned was thereafter detailed to represent Appellant and
requires additional time to complete his review of the record of trial and research
and formulate assertions of error. Appellant has been consulted and concurs with
this enlargement request.

Respectfully submitted.

Arthur L. Gaston III
CAPT, JAGC, USN
Appellate Defense Counsel

1254 Charles Morris St SE, Suite 100
Washington Navy Yard, DC 20374-5047




CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE
I certify that this document was emailed to the Court’s filing address,
uploaded into the Court’s case management system, and emailed to the Director,

Appellate Government Division on 9 March 2023.

Arthur L. Gaston III

CAPT, JAGC, USN

Appellate Defense Counsel

1254 Charles Morris St SE, Suite 100

Washiniton Navi Yard‘ DC 20374-5047




Subject: RECEIPT - FILING - Panel 2 - U.S. v. Patterson - NMCCA 202200262 - D 2EOT (Gaston)
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 10:28:24 AM

Corporal, USMC
Panel Secretary

Navy-Marine Corps Court of Criminal Appeals (Code 51)
1254 Charles Morris St SE, Ste 320
Washington Navy Yard, D.C 20374

Subject: FILING - Panel 2 - U.S. v. Patterson - NMCCA 202200262 - D 2EOT (Gaston)



To this Honorable Court:

Please see the attached for electronic filing in U.S. v. Patterson, NMCCA 202200262. Thank you.
V/r

CAPT Arthur L. Gaston Ill, JAGC, USN
Director, Navy-Marine Corps Appellate Defense Division
1254 Charles Morris Street SE, Suite 100

Washington Navy Yard, DC 20374-5047




IN UNITED STATES NAVY-MARINE CORPS
COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS

Before Panel No. 2

UNITED STATES NMCCA No. 202200262
Appellee APPELLANT’S MOTION FOR
V. THIRD ENLARGEMENT
Christopher F. PATTERSON Tried at Camp Pendleton, California on 23
First Lieutenant (O-2) May, 28 June, and 15-19 August 2022,
U.S. Marine Corps before a General Court-Martial convened

by Commanding General, 1st Marine
Logistics Group, LtCol Derek A. Poteet

and LtCol Andrea C. Goode, USMC,
Military Judges, presiding

Appellant

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGES OF THE UNITED STATES
NAVY-MARINE CORPS COURT OF CRIMINAL APPEALS

COMES NOW Appellant, by and through the undersigned counsel, and
respectfully moves for a second enlargement of time to file a brief and assignments
of error. The current due date is 15 April 2023. The number of days requested is
thirty. The requested due date is 15 May 2023.

The current status of the case:

1. The Record was docketed on 16 December 2022.

2. The Moreno III date is 16 June 2024.



3. Appellant 1s in confinement with a normal release date of 18
February 2025.

4. The Record consists of 953 transcribed pages and 2110 total pages.

5. The undersigned is still reviewing the record of trial.

Good cause exists for granting the requested enlargement. This case involves

a contested bench trial resulting in convictions for indecent visual recording and a
sentence of three years’ confinement and a dismissal. Appellant’s original appellate
defense counsel discovered he was conflicted from the case after reviewing the
record of trial. The undersigned was thereafter detailed to represent Appellant and
requires additional time to complete his review of the record of trial and research
and formulate assertions of error, in consultation with Appellant. Appellant has been
consulted and concurs with this enlargement request.

Respectfully submitted.

Arthur L. Gaston III
CAPT, JAGC, USN
Appellate Defense Counsel




CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE
I certify that this document was emailed to the Court’s filing address,
uploaded into the Court’s case management system, and emailed to the Director,

Appellate Government Division on 10 April 2023.

Arthur L. Gaston 11
CAPT, JAGC, USN

Appellate Defense Counsel




REMAND



THERE WERE NO REMANDS



NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF
APPELLATE REVIEW
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